
Notice of Meeting 
 

EXTRAORDINARY ASSEMBLY 
 

Monday, 14 January 2013 - 7:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barking 

 
To: Members of the Council of the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 
 Chair:   Councillor N S S Gill 
 Deputy Chair:  Councillor J Davis 
 

 
Date of publication: 4 January 2013      Graham Farrant 
           Chief Executive 
 

Contact Officer: Margaret Freeman 
Tel: 020 8227 2638 

Minicom: 020 8227 5755 
E-mail: margaret.freeman@lbbd.gov.uk 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declaration of Members' Interests   
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare 

any interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this 
meeting.  
 

3. Localising Support for Council Tax In England - Final Scheme (Pages 1 - 
46)  

 
4. Calculation and Setting of the Council Tax Base for 2013/14 (Pages 47 - 

56)  
 
5. Business Rates Income Forecast 2013/14 (Pages 57 - 62)  
 
6. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
7. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 



Private Business 
 

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Assembly, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended).  There are no such items at the time of preparing this 
agenda.  

 
8. Any confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 



 

 

ASSEMBLY 
 

14 January 2013 
 

Title: Localising Support for Council Tax in England – Final Scheme 
 
Report of: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director Finance 

 
Open  
 

For Decision 
 

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: Yes 
 

Report Author: Jonathan Bunt Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 724 8427 
E-mail: Jonathan.Bunt@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director, Finance 
 

Accountable Director:  The Chief Executive 
 

Summary:  
As part of the 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review, the Government announced that it 
would localise support for Council Tax from April 2013 with an expectation that 
expenditure would be reduced by 10% from the same date. The proposals are part of a 
wider policy of localism which aims to give Local Authorities increased financial autonomy 
and part of the reform of the welfare system to improve incentives to work whilst protecting 
the most vulnerable in society.  
 
The Welfare Reform Act 2012 abolished Council Tax Benefit from April 2013 and, in its 
place, support will take the form of a Council Tax reduction. The Local Government 
Finance Act 2012 contains provisions for the setting up of local support schemes.  
 
Council Tax support will be funded by a fixed grant based on current expenditure but it will 
be reduced by 10% nationally.  The grant for Barking & Dagenham from the Department 
for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) is £18.4m. Current estimated expenditure 
for 2013/14 is £20.7m (including £300k of growth in 2013/14), thus a shortfall of £2.3m 
must be found.  
 
Pensioners will be protected by a national scheme meaning they will receive the same 
amount of help as they do now and it is for local authorities to define the Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme for those of working age. Due to the fact that pensioners must be 
protected if the full cut is passed on to claimants, the actual cut to all working age benefit 
recipients would need to be 15%. 
 
Key principles must be adhered to in designing the scheme, with Local Authority duties to 
the vulnerable and ensuring incentives to work being taken into account. The new scheme 
must be in place by 31 January 2013 and, if the Council does not adopt a new scheme by 
this date, a default scheme, determined by Government, would apply. This would result in 
the Council having to fund the difference between the fixed grant and the full actual 
expenditure. 
 
The Local Government Finance Act 2012 also laid provisions for technical reforms to 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



 

 

Council Tax on empty homes premiums and these will come into force from 1 April 2013. 
This allows Local Authorities greater flexibility on the Council Tax discounts and 
exemptions that can be awarded on empty properties. It is proposed that the exemption 
and discount periods on empty homes should be reduced to 30 days and a premium 
applied to homes that are empty for more than 2 years. The additional debit that would be 
created would be approximately £890k and it is estimated that £500k could potentially be 
collected. 
 
In September 2012, the Council commenced an 8 week consultation proposing a scheme 
that would pass a 15% cut on to all working age benefit claimants.     
 
On 16 October 2012 the Government announced that a conditional one year only grant 
would be made available on application to Council Tax administering authorities to assist 
in funding the shortfall in expenditure from the new Support Scheme. This funding can be 
applied for in February 2013 and will be payable in March 2013.  
 
The extra funding available for Barking and Dagenham is £375k and is dependent upon 
the Council’s scheme not cutting benefit by more than 8.5%. This would still result in a 
shortfall in funding.  
 
If this option was taken, further consultation must be undertaken for Year 2 of the scheme 
to increase the cut in benefit to the 15% required as the grant is for 1 year only.  
 
Due to these factors it is recommended that the proposed consulted scheme, with a 15% 
cut to all working age benefit claimants, is put in place from Year 1. It is also 
recommended that the changes to exemptions be approved to generate additional income. 
 
This report details the scheme, exemption changes and funding options that are available 
and the results of the public consultation.   

Recommendation(s) 
 
Assembly is recommended to agree: 
 
1. the proposed option 2 scheme whereby a 15% cut is applied to all working age 

benefit claimants from 1 April 2013; and  
 
 2. the changes to empty property exemptions from 1 April 2013. 

Reason(s) 
 
The Council is required to design and implement a Council Tax Support Scheme from 
31January 2013.  Failure to do this will result in the default scheme being imposed and the 
10% cut in grant will have to be found from other areas of the Council. 

 
1. Introduction and Background 
  
1.1 Council Tax Benefit is an income related means tested benefit administered by 

Local Authorities on behalf of the Department for Work & Pensions (DWP). The 
benefit is demand led, i.e. if more people apply and are eligible to claim, the overall 
benefit bill increases. The DWP covers the cost of Council Tax Benefit by giving the 
local authority subsidy based on the overall amount paid out. It also provides a 
grant to cover most of the cost of administering the scheme. Current arrangements 
are such that eligibility for Housing and Council Tax Benefit are determined at the 

Page 2



 

 

same time on the same application forms and are generally subject to the same 
calculation criteria in respect of income, capital and earnings.  
 

1.2 It was announced in the 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) that support 
for Council Tax would be localised from April 2013 and expenditure reduced by 
10%. This means that Local Authorities would determine their own schemes based 
on finance from and guidance by the DCLG rather than the DWP. This 
announcement was followed in February 2011 by the Welfare Reform Bill which 
contained provisions to abolish Council Tax Benefit (CTB) paving the way for 
localised schemes. 
 

1.3 The grant from DCLG will be fixed based on past years expenditure. Therefore the 
actual expenditure for the Council for 2013/14 may be more, meaning that the 
percentage cut is greater than 10%. 

1.4 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 also laid provisions for technical reforms 
to Council Tax on empty homes premiums and these will come into force from 1 
April 2013, allowing Authorities greater flexibility on exemptions awarded on empty 
homes. 

 
2.  The proposed framework of the scheme 
 
2.1 The following are the key components of the Council Tax Support Scheme: 
 

• Local authorities will be responsible for devising their own local Council Tax 
Support Scheme to assist working age claimants with their Council Tax.  

• The Council Tax Support Scheme for people receiving the state pension will be 
a national scheme which will protect them from any reduction in support as a 
result of the new scheme and the cut of 10% in grant. 

• Local authorities will be paid a grant towards the cost of Council Tax Support 
rather than the 100% reimbursement of Council Tax Benefit at present.  The 
grant will be based on 90% of the previous year’s spend on Council Tax Benefit.  
Local Authorities can devise a local scheme which reduces expenditure to the 
level of the grant or decide to fund the reduction in grant from other sources.   

• The DCLG have set out in ‘Statements of Intent’ duties that Local Authorities 
must consider in designing their schemes. These include protecting vulnerable 
people and taking work incentives into account. 

• Local Authorities must consult on their proposed Council Tax Support Scheme. 

• Local Authorities must adopt a Council Tax Support Scheme before 31 January 
2013 or, if it does not, a default scheme will be imposed.  The default scheme is 
the current Council Tax Benefit scheme so the Council would have to fund the 
10% cut in expenditure from other areas in the Council. 

• Local Authorities will be required each year to consider whether it wishes to 
revise or replace its scheme. 

 
3.  Scheme Design & Consultation 

3.1 The guiding principles of the new scheme were to make the scheme as simple and 
as fair as possible. Consultation was undertaken from September 2012 with the 
proposed scheme based on the following: 

Page 3



 

 

• Apply current Council Tax Benefit rules using the 20% taper of income above 
Government allowances but the calculation of entitlement would be based on 85% 
of each claimant’s individual Council Tax liability.  

• This means that each claimant would have to pay about 15% of their Council Tax 
liability before any Council Tax Support could be offered. (the percentage is greater 
than 10% as pensioners must be protected)  This will ensure £2.3m can be funded 
from the collection of this cut. If the shortfall in expenditure is greater than this the 
percentage cut will need to increase. 

• If the full additional charge could be collected this would fund the 10% cut in 
expenditure. 

• Using existing Council Tax Benefit criteria meant that each claim would still be 
assessed taking into account individual circumstances and needs and thus go some 
way to protecting vulnerable groups. 

• Taking a uniform cut from all working age claimants means that the additional 
charge for each claimant is the minimum amount required to meet the 10% cut in 
funding. If some groups are protected the percentage cut for the remaining groups 
is increased.  
 

3.2 The Government also proposed that Councils use the new legislation on technical 
changes to empty homes' exemptions to allow additional income to be collected to 
fund the 10% cut in funding. 

 
The table below illustrates the changes that could be made and the additional 
income, based on actual exemptions awarded in 2011/12 that would be generated if 
the additional charges are collected in full. 

 

 
Class 

 
Current 

 
Proposed change 

Estimated 
additional 
income 

Second Homes 
A discount of 10% for up 

to 1 year 
A discount of 10% for 
up to 1 month only 

18K 

Class A – 
undergoing major 

repair 

100% exemption for up 
to 1 year 

100% exemption for up 
to 1 month only 82K 

Class C – 
unoccupied and 
unfurnished 

100% exemption for up 
to 6 months 

100% exemption for up 
to 1 month only 763K 

Long Term Empty 
Properties 

Full Council Tax liability 
is charged 

After 2 years empty a 
premium of 50% 

charged 
27K 

Total   
 

890K 

 
3.3 The full report on the potential additional income that could be collected from 

amending the current allowances is at Appendix 1. 
 

4. Additional Grant 
 
4.1 The DCLG announced in mid October that a grant would be made available for 

Year 1 of the scheme but only if the scheme adheres to certain criteria. This grant 

Page 4



 

 

can only be applied for in February 2013 after the scheme is finalised as of 
31January 2013 and will be payable in March 2013.  The Council’s share of the 
available grant is £375K.  The criteria are set out below: 

• Those who would be entitled to 100% support under current Council Tax Benefit 
arrangements pay between zero and no more than 8.5% of their net Council tax 
liability.   

• The taper rate does not increase above 25%.  (The taper rate is the amount used to 
calculate benefit entitlement which is applied when a claimant’s income is more 
than the amount the Government allows for them to live on. The taper in the current 
scheme is 20%)  

• There is no sharp reduction in support for those entering work. 
 

5. Scheme Options  

Option 1 – Do not pass on the 10% cut to claimants and fund the shortfall from 
another Council source 

Option 2 – Pass on the full cut to all working age claimants resulting in 
approximately a 15% cut. This is the proposed scheme that has been subject to full 
consultation. 

Option 3 - Use the additional grant funding for year 1 to reduce the percentage cut 
to 8.5%. This means that there will be a shortfall in funding.  

 Option 4 – Use the additional grant to reduce the percentage cut to 8.5% and 
change the taper to 25%. There will be a shortage in funding but less than in option 
3.  As the option to change the taper was not included in the original consultation, it 
cannot be implemented without re-opening or issuing a next consultation exercise. 

 
6. Funding implications of each option  

 
Please note – 100% collection has been detailed below to illustrate the differences of each 
option in a simple way but this will not be the collection rate. The collection rate in 2011/12 
was 94.1% and is estimated to be 95.1% in 2012/13. 
 
Please note:  

• Based on current estimates for discounts the gap between the grant and the 
discounts awarded will be £2.0m.  

• The currently predicted annual growth of 1.5% will increase this pressure by £300k 
each year to an effective cut of £2.3m. 

• The modelling in the table below is based upon current benefit caseload and actual 
figures will be dependent on the caseload during 2013/14.  

• Any additional income must be shared with the Greater London Authority (GLA), of 
which the share split is 24% to GLA and 76% to LBBD. 

 

Approx 
expenditure 

cut 

Minimum C 
tax payable 

Rate of 
withdrawal 
of Benefit 

Collected 
from  

claimants 

One-
Year 
Grant 

Net 
gain/loss to 
LBBD at 
100% 

collection 

Option 1 – 
absorb full 

cut 

 
 

2,300,000 
 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
375,000 

 
-1,925,000 

Page 5



 

 

 
 
6.2 Currently around 35% of claimants on benefit have Rent and/or Council Tax 

arrears. It is very difficult to predict the collection rate of this new charge on current 
benefit claimants who have very low incomes. The new scheme will take them 
below the current means test. Approximately 13,000 that were on full benefit this 
year will be asked to pay some Council Tax next year. Below illustrates the 
shortfalls of funding based on different collection rates.  

 
 
Funding Implications – Models of 75%, 50% and 25% collection from claimants 
(This assumes a 100% collection from changes to exemptions) 
 

 
 
 

Option 2 – 
pass on 
full cut 

 
2,300,000 15% 20% 2,328,102 0  28,898 

Option 3 – 
use grant 

 
2,300,000 8.5% 20% 1,289,403 375,000 -635,597 

Option 4 – 
use grant 
and taper 
change 

 
 

2,300,000 8.5% 25% 1,512,704 375,000 -412,296 

Cut totals 

2,300,000 

Minimum 
C tax 
payable 

Rate of 
with-

drawal of 
Benefit 

Collected 
from  

claimants 
at 100% 
collection 

One-
Year 
Grant 

Net 
gain/loss 
to LBBD 
at 75% 
collection 

Net 
gain/loss 
at 50% 
collection 

Net 
gain/loss 
at 25% 
collection 

Option 1 
– absorb 
full cut 

 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

375,000 

 

-1,925,000 

 

-1,925,000 

 

-1,925,000 

Option 2 
– pass 
on full 
cut 
 

15% 20% 2,328,102 0 -553,924 -1,135,949 -1,717,975 

Option 3 
– use 
grant 
 

8.5% 20% 1,289,403 375,000 -957,948 -1,280,299 -1,602,649 

Option 4 
– 

grant 
and 
taper 
change 

 

8.5% 25% 1,512,704 375,000 -790,472 -1,168,648 -1,546,824 

Page 6



 

 

Advantages & Disadvantages of Options 
 

Options Advantages Disadvantages 
 

1 Vulnerable are protected Cut in expenditure must be funded from 
elsewhere in the Council 
 

2 Simple scheme and fully consulted 
upon 
 
No further consultation is required 
from year 2 – the same scheme 
can continue 

100% of the cut in funding must be 
collected from benefit claimants and 
changes to empty property exemptions 
 
All working age claimants must now pay at 
least 15% of their Council Tax.  
 
Open to challenge for not taking the grant 
to assist vulnerable claimants  
 

3 Grant will provide £375k 
guaranteed income 
 
Claimants more protected as now 
only pay 8.5% of their Council Tax 
 
This option can be chosen without 
need for further consultation 
 

There will be larger shortfall which can only 
be funded by changes to empty property 
exemptions 
 
The grant is only for Year 1, further 
consultation must be undertaken next year 
to revert back to a 15% reduction  
 

4 Grant will provide £375k 
guaranteed income 
 
Claimants more protected as now 
only pay 8.5% of their Council Tax 
 

There will be a shortfall which can only be 
funded by changes to empty property 
exemptions 
 
Claimants are less protected than option 3 
as the entitlement taper is changed from 
20% to 25% 
 
This option cannot be chosen without need 
for further consultation 
 
The grant is only for Year 1, further 
consultation must be undertaken next year 
to revert back to a 15% reduction  
 

 
6.4 It is recommended that option 2 is approved as the final scheme. This has been 

fully consulted upon and further consultation will not be required for Year 2 of the 
scheme. The other options would result in larger shortfalls of funding that could only 
be met by changes to exemptions on empty properties.  

 
7. Breakdown of caseload 
 
7.1 The breakdown of the Council Tax Benefit caseload is as below. All current benefit 

claimants except pensioners, approximately 16,800 will be required to pay Council 
Tax. Of these about 13,000 will pay for the first time as they are currently entitled to 

Page 7



 

 

full benefit. Some claimants who currently receive a small amount of benefit will no 
longer qualify for any support. 

 

 
 
 
 
7.2 The additional amount each claimant will be required to pay will depend on their 

personal circumstances and the scheme option. Appendix 2 shows the minimum 
additional amounts that would need to be paid in each banding for claimants on full 
benefit based on the 15% cut and the 8.5% cut and include those entitled to a single 
person discount.  

 
7.3 If the additional grant is claimed by the Council, the additional Council Tax required 

will be less for all claimants. 
 
8. Consultation  
 
 An 8 week period of consultation was commenced in September and ended on 18 

November 2012.  
 

The results of the consultation are summarised below. The full analysis is at 
Appendix 3. 

 
� A majority of respondents (64.1%) agreed that the new Council Tax Support 

Scheme should be ‘mainly the same as the current Council Tax Benefit Scheme.’ 
 
� 39% of respondents who expressed an opinion agreed that ‘every working age adult 

who receives Council Tax support should pay at least something towards their 
Council Tax bill.’ 45% disagreed and the rest were unsure. 

 
� 33% of respondents who expressed an opinion did not agree ‘that the 15% 

reduction required to cover the Government’s cut in our grant should be applied 
equally to all working age adults.’ 43% agreed it should and the rest were unsure. 

7,496

840
2,017

13,953

Pensioners (31%)

Working Age disability (4%)

Dependants under 5 (8%)

All other claimants (57%)

Page 8



 

 

 
� When asked to name which groups they thought would be most affected,  people 

with a disability (35%) and lone parents (29%) were identified. However there is a 
strong correlation between the numbers identifying themselves as having a 
disability or lone parents and those numbers stating that these would be the most 
affected groups. 

 
9.  Financial Implications  
 
Completed by Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director – Finance 
 
9.1 Local Authorities currently receive reimbursement of their expenditure on Council 

Tax Benefit from the DWP.  Local Authorities will now receive a fixed grant and if 
demand increases the additional expenditure must be found by the Authority in 
order to continue awarding support. 

 
9.2 The grant allocation means the Council will experience a reduction in funding of 

11%, as opposed to the 10% headline figure published by Government. This 
effectively increases the amount of reduction that will be passed on to our CTB 
claimants. 

 
9.3 The requirement to keep pensioners on the same levels of support and design a 

new scheme for working age will mean that two schemes will need to be run 
whereas at the moment the Council Tax Benefit is administered as part of Housing 
benefits and is funded by the DWP.  This will increase the cost of administering 
CTB for the Council. 

 
9.4 The Council currently receives an administration grant of £1.965m in respect of 

running these schemes. There has already been a reduction of £105k on the 
2013/14 allocation.  It is likely that this grant will be further reduced in the future 
which will need to be managed as part of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS). 

 
9.5 The expected growth in the benefits caseload of 1.5% per year equates to an 

annual pressure of £300k.  The change to the funding by fixed grant means that the 
Council has to meet this pressure from its budget each year or implement a scheme 
to pass that cost on. 

 
9.6 In addition to managing increases in demand and pressures locally, the 

Government is proposing possible decreases to the Council Tax support grant in 
future years due to estimated decreases in demand nationally. This potentially could 
increase the funding gap if the Council experiences an increase in demand but is 
also expected to manage a reduction in funding at the same time. 

9.7 It is considered likely that Council Tax will be increasingly difficult to collect from 
affected groups especially if a scheme is viewed as unfair or hits those that have 
the least disposable income.  For Barking and Dagenham, as an area of significant 
deprivation, this will have a greater effect on already lower than average collection 
rates. The Council’s draft budget includes a revision to the bad debt provision for 
Council Tax that is not collected. 

 

Page 9



 

 

10.0 Legal Implications by Paul Feild Corporate Governance Lawyer 
 
Telephone 020 8227 3133  E-mail paul.feild@lbbd.gov.uk 

10.1 Historically Council Tax Benefit was administered by Councils on behalf of central 
Government and legislation. The scheme had run for a number of years and its 
fairness had been tested in law on many occasions. Following the Welfare Reform 
Act 2012 and further changes by the Local Government Finance Bill the 
responsibility for establishing support schemes will be at the local level that is to say 
by the Council. The Council has a legal duty to act as a fiduciary that is to ensure 
that the budget balances and there is the best prudent management of finances. 
Furthermore there is a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to ensure in establishing a 
scheme there is due regard to anyone or groups who may be detrimentally affected 
by change together coupled a general public law obligation to consult. Even taking 
these steps there is always a risk of Judicial Review of a local scheme however the 
risk is minimised by evidence of consultation and due regard of the response. 

  
10.2 It is possible that if the Assembly chose not to take advantage of the additional 

grant for Year 1 of the scheme, it could lead to a challenge that the Council has not 
taken advantage of all grants available to assist vulnerable claimants; however the 
risk of this being successful is mitigated by the response that for LBBD the grant’s 
conditions create an additional financial burden on the overall Council Budget that 
outweigh the value of the grant.  

 
11. Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
11.1 Prior to consultation an equalities impact assessment was undertaken. This found 

that some groups such as claimants’ with a disability and lone parents, 
predominantly women with younger children, may experience a greater impact from 
these changes than will other groups.  

 
11.2 Following consultation the impact assessment was updated and it was found that 

the above 2 groups formed a higher percentage of those replying to the 
consultation. The results showed that a higher percentage of respondents felt that 
these 2 groups should have greater protection from the cuts. It may be seen that 
there is a correlation between the higher numbers of replies from these 2 groups 
and the fact that these were the groups that a higher percentage felt should be 
protected.  
 

11.3 In using, as the basis of the scheme, the same rules as applied to Council Tax 
Benefit, the above 2 groups are protected to a greater degree than others as their 
‘applicable amounts’ are higher – this is the amount the Government allows to live 
on.  
 

11.4 Joint working with the CAB, voluntary groups and the Credit Union will continue to 
signpost claimants to help in managing the transition to this scheme.  The impact of 
the scheme must be measured after implementation and impacts taken into account 
in the implementation of year 2 of the scheme. The equalities impact assessment 
can be found at Appendix 4. 

 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

List of appendices: 
 

• Appendix 1 -  Technical changes report 
• Appendix 2 -  Additional Council Tax required by Band 

• Appendix 3 -  Consultation Responses 

• Appendix 4 -  Equalities Impact Assessment 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 

Technical Reforms of Council Tax 

Background 

The Coalition Government has proposed and consulted on making changes to the 

council tax system, including giving local authorities more flexibility on which discounts 

they can charge on second homes and certain empty properties. This is part of the 

Government's drive to decentralise control over local government finance, giving local 

authorities more local control to help them keep council tax down and provide stronger 

levers to make sure that the housing stock is effectively utilised.  

The Technical Reforms proposed from 2013/14 are set out below. It is up to local 

council’s to decide which changes they want to implement locally.  The below analysis 

illustrates possible changes and the resulting approximate increase to the Council Tax 

net collectable debit based on current awards. This can be seen as additional income if 

the debt can be collected in full. 

Proposed Changes 

• Second homes may be granted a discount of between zero and 100%. 

• A property undergoing major repair (Class A exemption) – the council may 

charge up to 100%.   

• If your property is unoccupied and is substantially unfurnished, the council 

may grant a discount of between zero and 100% known as class C. 

• Long term empty properties may be charged a premium of up to 50%   

Summary Table of Estimated Additional Income if all current exemptions and 

discounts are set at 100% for 30 days and then set at zero from day 31: 

 

Proposed Change 

 

Potential Additional Income 

Second Homes 18k 

Class A – undergoing major repair 82k 

Class C – unoccupied and unfurnished 763k 

Long Term Empty Properties 27k 

 

 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 
 

Second home discounts 

The Government confirms its intention to amend secondary legislation to allow billing 

authorities to levy up to 100% of council tax on second homes.1  Currently a 10% 

discount is granted for these properties. There are 413 properties granted a second 

home discount in Barking and Dagenham.  This represents a small percentage of the 

overall property base (0.3%).  Therefore any change has a minimal impact. It is 

estimated that £18K could be raised if the 10% discount was granted for 30 days and 

then removed. If this decision was made by LBBD then Elevate would need to write to 

all current recipients of the discount and the award ended automatically on the 30 

March 2013. Cost of additional letter would be approximately £500. The additional 

charge must then be collected. 

Empty property undergoing major repairs - Class A exemptions 

The government confirmed its intention to abolish the existing Class A exemption and 

replace it with a discount that local authorities could set between zero and 100%. The 

maximum period for which the discount may apply will be one year and there will be no 

discretion allowing a local authority to extend the time period. 

There are 124 properties with a Class A exemption with a total value of £83k. If the 

exemption is limited to 30 days and then removed an estimated £82k in potential 

additional income would be seen. 

If Barking and Dagenham chose to amend this discount to 30 days all current recipients 

will be written to and the exemption ended on the 31 March 2013. Currently properties 

that are under refurbishment are visited by Elevate which will no longer be required. 

This will reduce administrative overheads but the additional charge must be collected 

which will offset these savings. 

As one of the Council’s objectives is to supply the borough with more affordable housing 

for local residents, with a particular focus on family-sized houses, it is recommended that the 

new discount be set to zero after 30 days encouraging landlords to bring their properties 

back into use in the shortest period of time, maximising potential income for the Council 

and reducing administrative costs of visiting exempt properties. 

If all exemptions and discounts were removed under these changes than it could be 

argued that landlords would be encouraged to rent out or live in properties in the 

borough, reducing the number of empty homes, as there will be no benefit in leaving 

homes empty from a Council Tax view point. 

                                                           
1 The second home discount was originally set by legislation at 50% and Authorities were given the power to reduce to 10% in 2003. 

The discount was set at a minimum of 10% in barking and Dagenham as it was felt that if no discount existed then there would be 

no incentive for residents to inform the council of their second home.   

 

Page 14



APPENDIX 1 
 

Vacant dwellings Class C exemptions 

Currently properties that are left empty and unfurnished qualify for a 6 month 

exemption.  If the property remains empty after this period it attracts an empty discount 

which is 10% in Barking and Dagenham. 

The total number of properties within Barking and Dagenham that received this 

exemption is 2,662 with a total value of £763K. LBBD properties accounts for £185,520 

of this value.  

The Government is proposing to abolish this exemption and replace it with a discount of 

up to 100%. It is proposed that this exemption be replaced with a 100% discount for 30 

days with an estimated £746k in potential additional income 

Currently all empty properties are visited by Elevate on a quarterly basis to ensure that 

any new liable occupants are identified as early as possible. Should the exemption be 

replaced with a discount for 30 days it will no longer be necessary to identify and 

subsequently visit these properties. The owner will be charged and it will be in their best 

interest to advise Elevate of new occupants. Elevate currently employ an inspector to 

carry out these visits and this resource could be utilised elsewhere. Also the reduction in 

applications for this exemption will reduce the administrative burden on the service.  

Empty homes premium 

The Government proposes to allow local authorities to charge a premium of up to 50% 
for properties left empty for over 2 years. 

The total number of properties classed as long term empty within the borough is 86 with 
a value of £27K. 

Although the number of potential properties affected will be relatively low, there will be a 
requirement for Elevate to identify empty properties and collect the premium. There may 
also be additional appeals to the Valuation Tribunal, requiring further work. 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 

 Maximum CTS  

 
  

Council Tax Property Band 

Number of 

Claimants 

Annual 

Charge 
8.5% 15% 

A 2639 £884.15 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.44 £2.54 

Annual Additional Charge    £75.15 £132.62 

A SPD  £663.11 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.08 £1.91 

Annual Additional Charge    £56.36 £99.47 

B 3424 £1,031.50 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.68 £2.97 

Annual Additional Charge    £87.68 £154.73 

B SPD  £773.63 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.26 £2.23 

Annual Additional Charge    £65.52 £116.04 

C 9317 £1,178.87 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.92 £3.39 

Annual Additional Charge    £100.20 £176.83 

C SPD  £884.15 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.44 £2.54 

Annual Additional Charge    £75.15 £132.62 

D 1206 £1,326.22 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £2.16 £3.82 

Annual Additional Charge    £112.73 £198.93 

D SPD  £994.67 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.62 £2.86 

Annual Additional Charge    £84.55 £149.20 

E 202 £1,620.94 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £2.64 £4.66 

Annual Additional Charge    £137.78 £243.14 

E SPD  £1,215.71 
  

Weekly Additional Charge    £1.98 £3.50 

Annual Additional Charge    £103.33 £182.36 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
 

Summary of Results 

Introduction 

As part of national welfare benefits reform, from 1st April the Coalition Government is 

ending Council Tax Benefit (CTB), and the London Borough of Barking and 

Dagenham (LBBD) is required to design a new scheme, known as Council Tax 

Support (CTS). The new scheme will not be fully funded by the government, and there 

will be a shortfall of £2 million if LBBD continues to run CTB in its current form. LBBD 

is not able to absorb this loss in funding, and it has been proposed that payment 

support for Council Tax liability be reduced from 100% to 85% for all working age adult 

claimants.  

Consultation Aims 

LBBD aimed to consult with residents, particularly benefit claimants who will be 

directly affected by the changes, in order to identify groups that may be particularly 

badly affected by the changes.  

What we did 

From 2nd October 2012 LBBD sent letters to the 16,375 benefit claimants in the 

borough of working age, stating that they would be affected by changes to CTB from 

1st April 2013, and inviting them to participate in an online survey about the changes. 

Other residents were informed via the council newspaper ‘The News,’ and a prominent 

link to both information on the changes and the survey on the homepage of the council 

website. In addition two public consultation meetings were held, on Thursday 11th and 

Monday 15th October, which were attended in total by over 100 residents. Attendees 

were asked to fill in a paper copy of the same survey, which have been collated with 

the online results analysed in this summary. 

The consultation was open from 2nd October to 18th November 2012, and asked 

respondents whether they considered the proposals for a new scheme fair. In 

particular respondents were asked whether they thought the new scheme should be 

‘mainly the same’ as the current scheme, whether every working age adult should 

contribute, and whether all working age adults should be affected equally. 

Respondents were then asked to identify groups which they thought would be more 

affected than others by the changes, and to contribute any other comments about the 

draft scheme.    

Page 19



APPENDIX 3 
 

Results Summary 

Survey results showed overall support for the principles of the scheme, with the 

majority agreeing that the new Council Tax Support Scheme should be similar to the 

current Council Tax Benefit scheme, and that every working age adult who currently 

receives support should pay some Council Tax. There were concerns expressed that 

some groups may be more affected than others, though some self selection may be 

evident in these results. 323 people completed the survey. 

Survey Results 

(1) A majority of respondents (63.2%) agreed that the new Council Tax Support Scheme 

should be ‘mainly the same as the current Council Tax Benefit Scheme.’ 

Strongly Agree    37.5%   (121) Agreed or Disagreed 

Agree 25.7% (83) Agree 63.2% (204) 

Neither Agree nor 

Disagree 

12.4% (40)    

Disagree 8.7% (28) Disagree 17.0% (55) 

Strongly Disagree 8.4% (27)    

Don’t Know 7.4% (24)    

Total                 (323) 

(2) A small majority of respondents who expressed an opinion agreed that ‘every working 

age adult who receives Council Tax support should pay at least something towards their Council 

Tax bill.’ 

Strongly Agree 12.7% (40) Agreed or Disagreed  

Agree 32.0% (101) Agree 44.6% (141) 

Neither Agree nor Disagree 13.3% (42)    

Disagree 20.6% (65) Disagree 39.2% (124) 

Strongly Disagree 18.7% (59)    

Don’t Know 2.8% (9)    

Total         (316) 

(3) A small majority of respondents who expressed an opinion did not agree ‘that the 15% 

reduction required to cover the Government’s cut in our grant should be applied equally to all 

working age adults.’ 

Strongly Agree 9.8% (30) Agreed or Disagreed  

Agree 26.7% (82) Agree 36.5% (112) 

Neither Agree nor Disagree 15.6% (48)    

Disagree 21.2% (65) Disagree 40.7% (125) 

Strongly Disagree 19.5% (60)    

Don’t Know 7.2% (22)    

Total      (307) 

Page 20



APPENDIX 3 
 

(4)  A majority thought that ‘there are groups of people in the community who would be 

affected more than others by these changes.’ 

Yes 69.5% (207) 

No 10.7% (32) 

Don’t Know 19.8% (59) 

Total             (298) 

(5) When asked to name which groups they thought would be most affected 175 responded, 

some giving multiple answers, to give 223 responses. 

Group Number of 

Responses 

Percentage of 

responses 

Responses as a 

proportion of total 

surveys 

Disabled People 81 35.5% 25.1% 

Single Parents 67 29.4% 20.7% 

Those on a Low Income 21 9.2% 6.5% 

Unemployed 17 7.5% 5.3% 

Pensioners 10 4.4% 3.1% 

Single Adults 9 4.0% 2.8% 

Carers 6 2.6% 1.9% 

Families 4 1.8% 1.2% 

Parents with Disabled 

Children 

3 1.3% 0.9% 

Women  3 1.3% 0.9% 

Students 2 0.9% 0.6% 

Did not answer 148 n/a 45.8% 

 

Those with dependents, the self-employed, women with young children, homeowners on Job 

Seeker’s Allowance, and couples without children each received one response, or 0.48% of the 

total responses. 

Page 21



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 

 

Disabled people (35.5%) and single parents (29.4%) were therefore the groups which most 

respondents were concerned about. However, 19.4% of respondents identified themselves as 

disabled, and 15.9% responded that they lived in a household with a disabled person (it was 

not stated whether this should include the respondent or not). Similarly, while 29.4% of 

responses identified single parents as a group at risk, 19.3% of respondents were themselves 

single parents. When the number of responses for these groups is compared to the number of 

surveys completed instead of people that answered the question, the percentages from a 

certain group, and answering that the same group was particularly at risk are very close. 

Group Percentage (and 

number) of Answers 

Answers/Total 

Surveys 

Proportion of 

Respondents 

Disabled People 35.5% (81) 25.1% 19.4% 

Single Parents 29.4% (67) 20.7% 19.3% 

 

These results may therefore suggest self-selection, and may not translate to a widespread 

concern that any particular group will be more adversely affected than any other by the 

proposed scheme. 

 

(6) Question 6 asked for any additional comments about the scheme, these responses have 

been summarised in the FAQ document. 

Responses to Question 5

Disabled

Single Parents

Low Income

Unemployed

Pensioners

Single Adults

Carers

Other Responses

Page 22



APPENDIX 3 
 

Who was consulted 

In total the council received 323 responses to the survey, a relatively small sample of 

benefit claimants, and of the borough as a whole. Though respondents were not asked 

to identify whether they received benefits, it may be presumed from the targeted 

publicity that a majority of respondents were benefit claimants. 

 

(7) The vast majority of respondents were individuals living in Barking and 

Dagenham: 

Individuals living in Barking and Dagenham 94.7% (267) 

    Individuals or organisations supporting local people 3.5% (10) 

Individuals or organisations representing local people 1.8% (5) 

Did not answer  (41) 

 

 

(8) The majority of respondents (52.3%) lived in families with children, though there 

were substantial numbers of households that included a disabled person and 

households with no children: 

Families with 1-2 dependent children 23.0% (62) 

Families with 3+ dependent children 10.0% (27) 

Lone parent households 19.3% (52) 

A household with full and/or part-time workers 7.0% (19) 

Households with a disabled person 15.9% (43) 

Single person households, or couples with no children 20.0% (54) 

Did not identify with any of the above categories 4.8% (13) 

Did not answer  (53) 

 

(9) 31.3% of respondents considered themselves carers, whether of children, 
disabled family members or older family members: 

Carers 31.3% (80) 

Non-Carers 68.8% (176) 

Skipped Question  (67) 

 

(10) The highest number claiming to be carers cared for children under 14, more 
people answered this question than said that they were carers in the previous question. 

Caring for:             A child or children under 14 60.0% (57) 

                                A disabled person within the family 36.8% (35) 

                                An older family member 12.6% (12) 

Did not answer  (219) 

 

Page 23



APPENDIX 3 
 

(11) Almost all respondents were of working age, with 95% between 20 and 59. 

Under 20 0.7% (2) 

20-39 39.9% (106) 

40-59 55.1% (150) 

60-65 2.9% (8) 

66-75 2.2% (6) 

75 + 0.0% (0) 

Did not answer  (51) 

 

(12) There were almost twice as many female respondents (63.9%, 172) as male 

(36.1%, 97), 54 did not answer the question. 

 

(13) 4 respondents (1.8%) said that they have at some point in their lives identified as 

transgender. 

 

 

(14-18) The majority of respondents identified themselves as white, although a large            

number did not answer: 

 

 

 

(19) Of the 258 (79.9%) who answered the question, 50 (19.4%) respondents 

considered themselves disabled. 

 

White 75.9% (211) 

Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Groups 4.3% (12) 

Asian/Asian British 8.3% (23) 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British 11.2% (31) 

Other 0.4% (1) 

Did not answer  (45) 

Page 24



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
    

 

L
B

B
D

 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 

T
e

m
p

la
te

  
 te

v
a

n
s 

2
0

/4
/2

0
1

1
 

 

Page 25



  A
 q
u
ic
k
 g
u
id
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
  
 

                            

V
e

rs
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
 

 

S
te
p
 1

  
 D

e
c
id

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
 

S
te
p
 2
 
 
 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 y
o

u
r 

te
a

m
. 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
a

v
in

g
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

e
a

m
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 o

f 
b

o
th

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
, 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

n
d

 w
h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e

 s
ta

ff
; 

U
s
e
 t

h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

e
a

m
 a

s
 a

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
fr

ie
n
d

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 i
n

v
it
e

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t

e
a

m
. 

 U
s
e

 t
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 n

o
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

c
o
m

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 t

e
m

p
la

te
.
 

S
te
p
 3
 
P

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e
s

s
 –

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 a
 f

ir
s
t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

•
 

D
e

c
id

e
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 a
n
d

 w
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 m

ig
h
t 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 
a

n
d
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 k
e

y
 d

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
y
o

u
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 
to

 w
o

rk
 t

o
. 

  

•
 

In
fo

rm
  

th
e

 E
q
u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 t

e
a

m
  
o
f 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 d
a

te
s
  

•
 

S
e

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 E
&

D
 t

e
a

m
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

 d
a

te
. 
 

 

S
te
p
 4
 
 
 
 
S

e
n

d
 f
ir
s
t 

d
ra

ft
 t

o
 t
h

e
 E

&
D

 t
e
a

m
 f
o

r 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 –

 w
h

o
 i
n

 t
u

rn
 w

ill
 s

e
n

d
 b

a
c
k
 a

n
y
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

m
e

n
d
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

S
te
p
 5
 
 
 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

e
a

m
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 m
a

k
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

m
e

n
d
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e
.
 

S
te
p
 6
 
S

e
n

d
 t

o
 E

&
D

 (
G

ro
u

p
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
C

C
&

E
 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
l 
a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
 

•
 

W
h
e
n
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 y

o
u

r 
 O

M
T

  
to

 ‘
s
ig

n
 o

ff
’ 
‘ 
th

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
  

•
 

D
e

c
id

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 E

&
D

 t
e

a
m

. 

S
te
p
 7
  
 M

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

g
ro

u
p
.
 

Page 26



D
o

c
. 

N
a

m
e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 

D
o

c
. 

lo
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
 

A
u

th
o

r:
 

O
w

n
e

r:
 

A
p

p
ro

v
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

 

V
in

c
e

 W
a
d
d

a
m

s
 

 
 

D
a

te
: 

V
e

rs
io

n
: 

A
m

e
n

d
e

d
 

b
y
: 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 
/ 

R
e

a
s

o
n

 
fo

r 
C

h
a

n
g

e
: 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
s

ta
tu

s
: 

2
7

/1
1

/2
0

1
2
 

1
.2

 
A

n
d

re
w

 
M

a
rs

h
 

U
p

d
a

te
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

. 
D

ra
ft
 

 
 

 
 

 

   S
ig
n
in
g
 o
ff
 w
h
e
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

 S
ig

n
 o

ff
 b

y
 G

M
 C

o
h

e
s

io
n

 a
n

d
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s

  
  
  

  
  
 -

-
-

-
-

-
-

. 
  
D

a
te

  
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

 b
y
 O

M
T

/C
h

a
ir

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 G
ro

u
p

 -
-

-
-

-
..

 -
D

a
te

 
 D

a
te

 p
u

b
li

s
h

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

rn
e

t 
-

-
-

-
-

-
 

   R
e

v
ie

w
  

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 d

a
te

 
A

 d
a

te
 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

is
 

E
IA

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

e
d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
. 

•
 

T
h

is
 d

a
te

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
a

p
tu

re
d

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

ly
  

 

•
 

 Y
o

u
 m

u
s
t 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 t
im

e
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

is
 d

a
te

  

P
le

a
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 d
a

te
 b

e
lo

w
  

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

 A
 g
u
id
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

  
  S

ta
g

e
 1

: 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
o

li
c

y
/f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 /
s

e
rv

ic
e

  

Page 27



  T
h
e

 d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 s

h
o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
: 

●
 

a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
’s

/ 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
 /

s
e

rv
ic

e
  

a
im

s
 

●
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

●
 

A
n

 e
x
p

la
n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

y
 f

it
s
 i
n
to

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
  

  S
ta

g
e

  
2
: 

 

•
 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 

•
 

A
c
a

d
e
m

ic
 /
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 

•
 

O
th

e
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
  
 

•
 

D
a

ta
b
a

s
e

s
  

•
 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
  

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
  

•
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 /
o

m
b
u

d
s
m

a
n

 f
in

d
in

g
s
  

If
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 l
it
tl
e

 o
r 

n
o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
, 

s
a

y
 w

h
a

t 
y
o

u
 w

ill
 d

o
 t

o
 f
in

d
 s

o
m

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 g
iv

e
 e

x
a

m
p
le

s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
y
p

e
s
 o

f 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 y
o

u
 m

ig
h

t 
fi
n
d

. 
S

c
o

p
e

 t
h

is
 i
n

to
 y

o
u

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 (
e

.g
. 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

r 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

] 
  S

ta
g

e
 3

 A
s

s
e

s
s

in
g

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

 
 In

 t
h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
o

lic
y
 /
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
 /
s
e
rv

ic
e

 W
h
a
t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 d

o
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

, 
o

r 
w

h
a

t 
c
o

u
ld

 i
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
, 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 /

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
d

is
c

ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 
h

a
ra

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

in
e

q
u

a
li
ty

?
 

 

•
 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 b

e
s

t 
p

ra
c

ti
c

e
. 

In
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

y
, 

/ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
/ 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

h
a

t 
a

re
 w

e
 p

ro
u

d
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 e

q
u

a
l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
?

 

•
 

R
e

m
e
m

b
e

r 
w

h
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
m

a
y
 f

a
c
e

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

 (
fa

c
in

g
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 

m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 o
n

e
 g

ro
u
n

d
 e

.g
. 

a
s
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 w

o
m

a
n

) 
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

is
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l.
 

•
 

T
a

k
in

g
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 h
o

w
 w

ill
 y

o
u

  
  

  
d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 p
o

lic
y
/ 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 /

 f
u
n

c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
?
  

S
c
o

p
e
 i
n

to
 y

o
u

r 
a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 
 

  

Page 28



S
ta

g
e

 4
. 
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

  
 –

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
ll 

th
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

 Id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 n

e
e
d

e
d
, 
is

 t
h

e
re

 a
n

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
h
a

t 
y
o

u
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o

lle
c
t 

o
r 

h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
, 
th

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
h

e
lp

 y
o

u
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 y
o

u
r 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 n

e
e
d

s
. 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 w
h

a
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a

k
e
n

 t
o
 f
ill

 t
h

is
 g

a
p
; 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 w
h

e
re

 l
it
tl
e

 o
r 

n
o
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

W
h
a
t 
p

ra
c

ti
c

a
l 
c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
?

  
W

h
a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

o
n
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
c

c
e
s

s
 t
o

, 
a

n
d

 t
a

k
e

-u
p

 o
f,

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

li
c

y
?

 
W

h
a
t 
w

ill
 y

o
u

 d
o

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 e
li
m

in
a

te
 d

is
c

ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
e

n
 y

o
u

 p
ro

c
u

re
 /
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o

r 
g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
?
 

 
 

Page 29



   S
ta

g
e

 1
 –

  
  
S

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

ts
 a

b
o

u
t 

y
o

u
r 

p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

  
    1

  
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

  
F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
  

2
. 

P
o

lic
y
 /

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 /

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

: 
 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 

3
. 

L
e

a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r:

 
 

A
n

n
e
tt

e
 C

a
rd

y
 

4
. 

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
P

e
rs

o
n
 /

 T
e
a
m

: 
 

V
in

c
e

 W
a
d
d

a
m

s
 

5
. 

 D
a

te
 o

f 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t:

 
 

 

6
. 

 T
h
e

 m
a

in
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
  

 p
o

lic
y
/s

tr
a

te
g
y
 /

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 

T
h

e
 C

o
a

li
ti

o
n

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 a
b

o
li
sh

in
g

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
T

a
x 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

(C
T

B
) 

fr
o

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 m
u

st
 r

e
p

la
ce

 i
t 

w
it

h
 a

 l
o

ca
l 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
T

a
x 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
ch

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 s
a

v
e

 1
0

%
 f

ro
m

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

 o
n

 C
T

B
. 

T
h

is
 

m
e

a
n

s 
th

e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 l
e

ss
 m

o
n

e
y
 f

o
r 

co
u

n
ci

ls
 t

o
 p

a
y
 o

u
t 

in
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
. 

F
o

r 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 t
h

is
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s 

a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 £

2
m

il
li
o

n
. 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

a
s 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

  
th

e
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

o
f 

a
 

d
ra

ft
 l
o

ca
l 
sc

h
e

m
e

 t
o

 b
e

g
in

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
. 

F
ro

m
 2

n
d

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

to
 

1
8

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 L
B

B
D

 s
e

n
t 

le
tt

e
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 1

6
,3

7
5

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

cl
a

im
a

n
ts

 

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

, 
st

a
ti

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 b

y
 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
T

a
x 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

(C
T

B
) 

fr
o

m
 1

st
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
, 

a
n

d
 i
n

v
it

in
g

 

th
e

m
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 a
n

 o
n

li
n

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s.
 O

th
e

r 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
n

e
w

sp
a

p
e

r 
‘T

h
e

 N
e

w
s,

’ 
a

n
d

 a
 

p
ro

m
in

e
n

t 
li
n

k
 t

o
 b

o
th

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
u

rv
e

y
 o

n
 

th
e

 h
o

m
e

p
a

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 
w

e
b

si
te

. 
In

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
w

o
 p

u
b

li
c 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
w

e
re

 h
e

ld
, 

o
n

 T
h

u
rs

d
a

y
 1

1
th

 a
n

d
 M

o
n

d
a

y
 1

5
th

 

Page 30



O
ct

o
b

e
r,

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

re
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
b

y
 o

v
e

r 
1

0
0

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
. 

A
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

w
e

re
 a

sk
e

d
 t

o
 f

il
l 
in

 a
 p

a
p

e
r 

co
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 

w
h

ic
h

 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

ll
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 o
n

li
n

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

re
ce

iv
e

d
 a

s 
o

f 
2

6
th

 O
ct

o
b

e
r,

 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
n

a
ly

se
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t.
 I

n
 t

o
ta

l 
3

2
3

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
sp

o
n

se
s 

w
e

re
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

su
lt

s 
co

m
p

il
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 i
n

 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

O
v
e

ra
ll
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
su

lt
s 

w
e

re
 

su
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 o

f 
LB

B
D

’s
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 o

f 
sh

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
rd

e
n

 e
q

u
a

ll
y
 a

cr
o

ss
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 c
la

im
a

n
ts

 a
n

d
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
ch

e
m

e
 b

ro
a

d
ly

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
T

a
x 

B
e

n
e

fi
t.

 S
o

m
e

 c
o

n
ce

rn
 w

a
s 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 

o
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
g

ro
u

p
s,

 e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y
 t

h
e

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
n

d
 s

in
g

le
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

is
 w

a
s 

ro
u

g
h

ly
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
o

se
 

g
ro

u
p

s 
th

a
t 

re
sp

o
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

p
e

rh
a

p
s 

in
d

ic
a

ti
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 

se
lf

-s
e

le
ct

io
n

, 
a

n
d

 w
a

s 
o

u
tw

e
ig

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

rw
h

e
lm

in
g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
n

 e
v
e

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
. 

 

 

 

7
. 

G
ro

u
p

s
 w

h
o

 t
h
e

 p
ie

c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
r 

  
  

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
: 

- 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 

- 
S

ta
ff
 

- 
O

th
e

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 
o

r 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

(W
ill

 t
h
e

 p
ie

c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 a
n
o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
y
?

) 
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
T

a
x 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

cl
a

im
a

n
ts

, 
th

e
ir

 c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
ie

s.
  
A

n
y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 

a
p

p
ly

in
g

 f
o

r 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
T

a
x 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 

8
. 

A
n

y
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 o

r 
g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 i
.e

. 
le

g
a
l/
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

/s
ta

tu
to

ry
  

A
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 S

p
e

n
d

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 2

0
1

0
, 

th
e

 C
o

a
li
ti

o
n

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
d

 t
h

a
t 

it
 i
n

te
n

d
s 

to
 a

b
o

li
sh

 C
T

B
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

ce
 i
t 

w
it

h
 a

 l
o

ca
l 

su
p

p
o

rt
 s

ch
e

m
e

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
. 

T
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

st
a

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

lo
ca

l 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
T

a
x 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

m
u

st
 i
n

cl
u

d
e

: 

 •
 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

 o
f 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
le

v
e

ls
 f

o
r 

p
e

n
si

o
n

e
rs

. 
  
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 s

ta
te

 p
e

n
si

o
n

 c
re

d
it

 (
p

e
n

si
o

n
e

rs
) 

m
u

st
 b

e
 

p
ro

te
ct

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 c

u
ts

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

ir
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
is

 u
n

ch
a

n
g

e
d

. 
  

Page 31



 

•
 

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

n
o

t 
a

ct
 a

s 
a

 d
is

in
ce

n
ti

v
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
a

li
ti

o
n

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 k
e

e
n

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 a
re

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
d

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 c

la
im

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

. 

 

•
 

T
h

e
 i

m
p

a
ct

 o
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 d

e
si

g
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
. 

 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

e
si

g
n

 a
 s

ch
e

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

te
ct

s 
so

m
e

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
s 

fr
o

m
 c

u
ts

 b
u

t 
th

is
 w

il
l 
re

su
lt

 i
n

 

u
n

p
ro

te
ct

e
d

 g
ro

u
p

s 
h

a
v
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

b
ig

g
e

r 
cu

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 b

e
n

e
fi

t,
 o

r 

e
ls

e
 c

u
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 f
ro

n
t-

li
n

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 

 In
 m

id
-O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
2
 t

h
e

 C
o

a
lit

io
n
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
ls

o
 a

n
n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 

th
a

t 
a

 o
n

e
-o

ff
 f
u
n

d
, 
w

o
rt

h
 £

3
7

5
,0

0
0
 t

o
 L

B
B

D
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

if
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

s
e

t 
lo

w
e

r 
th

a
t 

9
1

.5
%

 o
f 

th
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 b

ill
, 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 t
a

p
e

r 
ra

te
 o

n
 e

x
c
e

s
s
 

in
c
o

m
e

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
e

t 
a

b
o

v
e

 2
5

%
. 
T

h
e

s
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
, 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ly
 o

n
ly

 i
f 

L
B

B
D

 c
h
o

o
s
e

s
 t
o

 p
u

rs
u
e

 t
h
is

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

 
 

    S
te

p
 2

. 
  

  
  
 G

a
th

e
ri

n
g

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

  
   1

. 
W

h
o

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

e
rv

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
y
 /

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 /

 p
ie

c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
?
 

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

re
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y 

e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 o
r 

w
h

o
 b

e
co

m
e

 e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 t
o

 C
T

B
, 

g
ro

u
p

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

 t
h

e
 d

is
a

b
le

d
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
in

g
le

 

m
o

th
e

rs
, 

ch
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 t

e
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 i
n

 f
a

m
il
ie

s 
re

ce
iv

in
g

 C
T

B
, 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
 i
n

co
m

e
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s.
 

 

Page 32



 2
 .
W

h
a

t 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 d
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 a
b
o

u
t 

th
e

 p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 t
h

is
 p

ie
c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 a

im
e
d

 a
t?

 (
P

le
a

s
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 b
o

x
e

s
 b

e
lo

w
 )

 
  E

q
u

a
li

ty
 G

ro
u

p
s

 
 In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 (
re

s
e
a

rc
h

 /
 d

a
ta

) 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
K

n
o

w
n

 o
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s
 

 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
  

2
0

1
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
; 

W
h
it
e
 -

 6
5

.5
6

%
; 

A
s
ia

n
 -

 1
5

.2
6

%
; 
a

n
d
 

B
la

c
k
 –

 1
7

.6
3

%
. 
  

G
e

n
d
e

r 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

T
ra

n
s
g
e
n

d
e

r)
 

2
0

1
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 

In
 2

0
1

1
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 9

5
,0

0
0

 
fe

m
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 8
9

,0
0
0

 m
a

le
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 
s
h

o
w

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
fe

m
a

le
s
 m

a
k
e
 5

1
.6

%
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 (

J
u

l 
2

0
1

0
-J

u
n

 
2

0
1
1

) 
2

7
,3

0
0

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ta
te

d
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 2

3
.5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n

-w
id

e
 f
ig

u
re

 
o
f 

1
7

.4
%

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

A
g
e

 
2

0
1
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 

 
T

h
e

 5
-1

9
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 2
1
.4

%
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 (
L

o
n

d
o
n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 1
7

.3
);

 2
0

-
6

4
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

t 
5

8
.2

%
 (

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
A

v
e

ra
g
e

 6
4

.4
%

);
 6

5
+

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

t 
1
0

.4
%

 
(L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 1
0

.7
%

) 
 

R
e

lig
io

n
 a

n
d

 B
e

lie
f 
 

2
0

1
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 

C
h

ri
s
ti
a

n
it
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 p
re

d
o

m
in

a
te

 r
e

lig
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 6

9
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
M

u
s
lim

s
 m

a
k
e

 u
p

 4
.4

%
 a

n
d
 S

ik
h

s
 a

n
d
 

H
in

d
u

s
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 1

.1
%

 e
a

c
h

. 
1

5
.3

%
 s

ta
te

 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
 r

e
lig

io
n

 w
h

ile
 8

.4
%

 d
id

 n
o
t 

s
a

y
. 

  

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

2
0

1
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 

It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 5

-7
%

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t
h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
 

le
s
b

ia
n

, 
g
a

y
, 

b
is

e
x
u

a
l 
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
g
e

n
d
e

r.
 

M
a

te
rn

it
y
 a

n
d

 N
u

rs
in

g
 M

o
th

e
rs

  
 

2
0

1
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 

T
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

d
 3

,7
2
9

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
o

r 
n

u
rs

in
g
 m

o
th

e
rs

 i
n
 2

0
1
0

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 

Page 33



2
.0

7
%

 o
f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

. 

Y
o

u
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 w
is

h
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

C
a

re
rs

 
 

 

D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 e
n
o

u
g
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b
o

u
t 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t?
 Y

e
s
 

If
 n

o
t,

 t
h

is
 a

re
a
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 i
n
 y

o
u

r 
a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

3
 .

 D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

?
 I

f 
y
e

s
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 o

f 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 h
e

re
 &

 g
o

 t
o

 S
te

p
 3

, 
if
 N

o
 l
is

t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 g
e

t 
m

o
re

 d
a
ta

.(
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

) 
 2

0
1
1

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 M

a
p

p
in

g
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
 –

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
1

) 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 C

a
s
e

lo
a
d

 d
a

ta
 (

1
3

/3
/1

2
) 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 c

la
im

a
n

t 
e
th

n
ic

it
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

 (
1

4
/8

/1
2
) 

P
u

b
lic

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

2
6

/1
0

/1
2

-1
8

/1
1

/1
2

) 
 

 W
h
a
t 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 p
la

c
e

 /
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ie
c
e

 o
f 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t?
  
S

e
e

 a
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
     S

te
p

  
3

. 
  

  
 A

s
s

e
s

s
in

g
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
 

  1
. 

          

W
h
a
t 
d
o

e
s
 y

o
u

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 y
o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 t
e

ll 
y
o

u
?
 

A
re

 a
n

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 u

n
d
e

r 
o

r 
o

v
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 w
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 w

o
u

ld
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

to
 s

e
e

. 
 P

le
a

s
e

 g
iv

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 b

e
lo

w
. 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
  

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 d
e

c
lin

in
g
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

e
th

n
ic

it
y
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 a

t 
o

v
e

r 
8

0
%

. 
T

h
o

s
e

 t
h

a
t 
d

id
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 
a

n
 e

th
n

ic
 o

ri
g
in

 w
e

re
; 

W
h
it
e
 9

.6
%

; 
A

s
ia

n
 2

%
; 
B

la
c
k
 5

.2
%

 

G
e

n
d
e

r 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

ra
n
s
g
e

n
d

e
r)

 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 1

6
,1

1
3

 c
la

im
a

n
ts

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 f
e

m
a

le
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 6

6
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
c
la

im
a

n
t 
c
a

s
e

lo
a

d
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

1
4

.4
%

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 
5

1
.6

%
 

A
g
e

  
P

e
n

s
io

n
e

rs
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 
fo

r 
3

2
%

 o
f 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 
1

0
.4

%
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
a

s
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 w
h

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 s
ta

te
 

Page 34



p
e

n
s
io

n
 c

re
d

it
 (

p
e

n
s
io

n
e

rs
) 

m
u

s
t 

b
e

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 

c
u

ts
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

ir
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

is
 u

n
c
h
a

n
g
e

d
. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 t
h
e

re
 w

ill
 

b
e

 n
o

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 a
ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
c
la

im
a
n
ts

 w
h

e
n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n

g
 a

 L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
 

 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

  
5

,6
2
6

 o
f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
la

im
a
n

ts
 s

ta
te

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 3

,5
1
5

 o
f 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

 o
v
e

r 
p

e
n

s
io

n
a

b
le

 a
g
e

 s
o
 a

re
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 c

u
ts

. 
T

h
e

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 2

,1
1

1
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

t 
1

2
.8

%
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 c

la
im

a
n
t 

c
a

s
e

 l
o

a
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 
2

3
.5

%
  

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 d
is

ti
n
g
u

is
h

 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 b
y
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

R
e

lig
io

n
 a

n
d

 b
e

lie
f 
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 d
is

ti
n
g
u

is
h

 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 b
y
 r

e
lig

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f.
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

t 
a

n
d
 N

u
rs

in
g
 M

o
th

e
rs

  
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 d
is

ti
n
g
u

is
h

 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 b
y
 p

re
g
n

a
n
t 
a

n
d

 n
u

rs
in

g
 m

o
th

e
rs

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

o
s
e

 
w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e

 o
f 
5

 a
re

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 

2
9

0
0

 l
o

n
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e

 w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 
a

g
e

 o
f 
5

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 2

3
%

 o
f 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

. 
  

S
o

c
io

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
A

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 i
s
 a

 m
e
a

n
s
 t
e

s
te

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
t,
 a

ll 
q
u

a
lif

y
in

g
 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

 l
o

w
e

r 
s
o

c
io

-e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e
s
  

 

Y
o

u
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 w
is

h
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

C
a

re
rs

 
 

2
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 h

a
v
e

 y
o

u
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
fo

r 
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
?

 
S

te
p

 2
. 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n
ti
a

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

r 
b

a
rr

ie
rs

 f
o

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
  

N
e

g
a

ti
v
e

  

E
th

n
ic

it
y
  

T
h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
. 

A
s
 o

v
e

r 
8

0
%

 o
f 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 d
e

c
lin

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
 i
t 

is
 

im
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 

Page 35



G
e

n
d
e

r 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

ra
n
s
g
e

n
d

e
r)

 
T

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

v
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 1

4
.4

%
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 l
it
tl
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 f
o

r 
a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

g
e

n
d

e
r,

 a
s
 o

n
ly

 1
.5

%
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 

w
ro

te
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
m

e
n

 w
e

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 a

s
 a

 g
ro

u
p

. 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
T

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

P
u

b
lic

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 s

h
o
w

e
d

 
d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 c
o
n

c
e
rn

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 p
e
o

p
le

. 
D

e
s
p

it
e

 
ju

s
t 

1
2
.8

%
 o

f 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 b
e

in
g
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 
a

n
d

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 (
2

3
.5

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
a
d

u
lt
 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
n

s
io

n
e

rs
),

 
2

1
.2

%
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 n

a
m

e
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

s
 a

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
. 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 

b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 t
h

e
y
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

w
o

rk
, 

o
r 

fo
u

n
d

 
it
 h

a
rd

e
r 

to
 d

o
 s

o
, 

a
n

d
 s

o
 w

e
re

 m
o

re
 

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
o

n
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

s
y
s
te

m
 s

h
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 g

ro
u

p
 

o
v
e

r 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
u

lly
 

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
o

n
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 
T

h
e

re
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 o

th
e
r 

w
e

lf
a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 u

n
d
e

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 b

u
t 

th
e

 d
e

ta
il 

o
f 

th
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
k
n

o
w

n
 a

t 
p

re
s
e

n
t.
 

A
g
e

 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 p

e
n

s
io

n
a

b
le

 a
g
e

 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 p

e
n

s
io

n
a

b
le

 a
g
e

 

Page 36



c
la

im
a

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 n
e

u
tr

a
l 
 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 n
e

u
tr

a
l 

R
e

lig
io

n
 a

n
d

 B
e

lie
f 
 

T
h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
lig

io
u

s
 

g
ro

u
p

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 
a
ff

e
c
te

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

T
h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
a

n
y
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
s
e

x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
. 

P
re

g
n

a
n

t 
a

n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
 m

o
th

e
rs

  
T

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
. 

It
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 l
o

n
e
 

p
a

re
n

ts
 w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

5
 w

h
e

n
 

ta
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

th
e

r 
w

e
lf
a

re
 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 
ta

x
 c

re
d

it
s
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 

p
re

g
n
a

n
t 
o

r 
n

u
rs

in
g
 

m
o

th
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

is
p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 
a
ff

e
c
te

d
. 

S
o

c
io

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

  
T

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

 

 A
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p

p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

 m
e

a
n

s
-

te
s
te

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
t,

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 s

o
c
io

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

a
s
 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

Page 37



w
it
h

 6
.6

%
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 n

a
m

in
g
 

th
o

s
e
 o

n
 l
o

w
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 a

s
 a

 g
ro

u
p

 a
t 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
ri
s
k
. 

A
s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

fo
rc

e
d

 b
y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 a
 

m
e

a
n

s
 t
e

s
te

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

th
is

 i
s
 

u
n

a
v
o

id
a

b
le

, 
b
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 l
im

it
in

g
 

th
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
 f
a

r 
a

s
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

llo
w

. 

C
a

re
rs

 
T

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 n

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u

p
. 

 

T
h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
. 
O

n
ly

 2
.1

%
 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 t
h

a
t 

c
a

re
rs

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
a

te
ly

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
, 

d
e

s
p

it
e
 

3
0

.4
%

 o
f 

re
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
 c

a
re

rs
. 

Is
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
in

d
ir
e

c
t 
o

r 
d

ir
e

c
t 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

?
 N

o
 

 C
a

n
 a

n
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
b

e
 j
u

s
ti
fi
e

d
 o

r 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
a

te
 i
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

 l
e

g
it
im

a
te

 a
im

  
if
 y

e
s
 p

le
a

s
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
ta

ils
?

  
 If
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
m

a
d
e

 t
h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e
 f
o
u

n
d

 b
y
 c

u
tt

in
g
 o

th
e

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

It
 i
s
 a

rg
u

a
b

le
 t

h
a

t 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

re
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
s
e

 g
ro

u
p
s
 i
s
 ‘
fa

ir
e

r’
 o

v
e

ra
ll.

 

     4
. 

  
  
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 E
q

u
a
li

ty
  

 1
. 

   

W
h
a
t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

o
n

e
 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

?
 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
y
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 y

o
u

’v
e

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

: 
M
M
Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

M
M
Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 

Page 38



          

M
M
M
a
k
e
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
/p
o
lic
y
/s
tr
a
te
g
y
 m
o
re
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 

M
M
E
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 t
ra
in
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

M
M
P
ro
m
o
te
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 o
r 
g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

(T
h
in
k
 a
b
o
u
t 
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
, 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
) 

E
th
n
ic
it
y
  

   C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
g
ro
u
p
s
 –
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 f
ro
n
t 

lin
e
 o
ff
ic
e
s
, 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
e
v
s
 &
 B
e
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
h
e
lp
 a
re
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 c
le
a
r 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 d
e
b
t,
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 s
k
ill
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
jo
b
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
. 

    D
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

P
o
s
s
ib
ly
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
fo
rm

 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 i
f 
th
e
y
 a
re
 a
s
k
e
d
. 
S
im
ila
rl
y
 i
t 
m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
to
 s
e
n
d
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 e
.g
. 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
, 
o
r 
fa
it
h
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
ti
n
g
 a
s
 a
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
h
o
 

m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 i
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 

   

G
e
n
d
e
r 
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

A
g
e
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 a
n
d
 b
e
lie
f 
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

S
o
c
io
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

P
re
g
n
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 N
u
rs
in
g
 M
o
th
e
rs
 

Y
o
u
 m
a
y
 a
ls
o
 w
is
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

C
a
re
rs
 

2
. 

W
h
a
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
?
 S

e
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

 

3
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t?
 S

e
e

 a
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 

 

4
. 
 

H
o
w
 w
ill
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 E
IA
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
  
- 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
  
o
u
tc
o
m
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
s
  

O
n
g
o
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
c
la
im
a
n
ts
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
/o
r 
re
n
e
w
in
g
 c
la
im
s
 

 

Page 39



  A
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

  
 D
a
te
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

W
h
o
 

N
o
te
s
 

J
u
n
e
 –
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

P
h

a
s

e
 1

  
A

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
 R

a
is

in
g

 C
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 a

n
d

 I
n

it
ia

l 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 

 
 

 
•
 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 o
n
 L
B
B
D
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
s
te
e
r.
 

 

•
 
P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
ila
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
y
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 

 

•
 
P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 o
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

 

 

•
 
A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

  E
le
v
a
te
  

 E
le
v
a
te
/P
o
lic
y
 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 E
le
v
a
te
/P
o
lic
y
 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

 
•
 
In
it
ia
l 
le
tt
e
rs
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 r
e
c
ip
ie
n
ts
 i
n
fo
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
m
 

o
f 
th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 c
le
a
r 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
o
ri
g
in
 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

•
 
A
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
e
n
ts
 

h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 (
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 M
a
y
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
a
rd
) 

 

E
le
v
a
te
/M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

&
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

 
•
 
In
it
ia
l 
P
R
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
  
a
c
ro
s
s
 m
u
lt
ip
le
 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
:-
 

- 
T
h
e
 N
e
w
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 v
o
x
p
o
p
s
 –
 A
re
 y
o
u
 A
w
a
re
?
) 

- 
P
re
s
s
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 

- 
O
n
lin
e
 c
o
m
m
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 v
ia
 F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 a
n
d
 T
w
it
te
r 

 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

    

 

Page 40



D
a
te
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

W
h
o
 

N
o
te
s
 

- 
U
ti
lis
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
-m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 e
.g
. 
th
e
 

C
V
S
 o
r 
R
A
M
F
E
L
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
  

 - 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 f
o
ra
 e
.g
. 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

F
o
ru
m
 

  

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 

 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

 
•
 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

- 
A
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
?
 

- 
W
h
a
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 g
iv
e
n
?
 

- 
Is
 i
t 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il?
 

- 
A
re
 t
h
e
y
 m
a
k
in
g
 c
le
a
r 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 G
o
v
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
?
 

E
le
v
a
te
 

P
o
lic
y
 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

 
•
 
F
u
ll 
B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 f
o
r 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

- 
Q
&
A
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
e
n
c
y
 c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 

- 
‘L
in
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
’ 

 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

 
•
 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 –
o
n
lin
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 e
tc
. 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
 

–
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
h

a
s

e
 2

  
F

a
c

ts
, 

F
ig

u
re

s
, 
P

la
n

 Y
o

u
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 
 

 
•
 
W
ri
tt
e
n
 c
o
lla
te
ra
l 

- 
P
R
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
a
b
le
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts
 

- 
P
la
n
 Y
o
u
r 
B
u
d
g
e
t?
  

- 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 T
o
u
g
h
 T
im
e
s
 –
 H
o
w
 y
o
u
 c
a
n
 

m
a
k
e
 y
o
u
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 g
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r/
b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
. 

- 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 T
o
u
g
h
 T
im
e
s
 –
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 Y
o
u
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

E
le
v
a
te
 

P
o
lic
y
 &
 P
e
rf
 

P
la
in
 E
n
g
lis
h
 

c
h
e
c
k
 

Page 41



D
a
te
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

W
h
o
 

N
o
te
s
 

 
•
 
P
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

- 
D
e
ta
ils
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

- 
W
h
ic
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
 a
re
 p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 w
h
y
 

- 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 c
o
lla
te
ra
l 
fo
r 
w
id
e
r 

d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

E
le
v
a
te
 

 

 
•
 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 M
P
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 

- 
E
x
te
n
d
e
d
 Q
&
A
s
 f
o
r 
c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
. 

- 
F
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
re
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
, 
th
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 s
u
ff
e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
lly
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 a
 t
y
p
ic
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
ill
 

lo
s
e
 (
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
).
 

E
le
v
a
te
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

 

 
•
 
P
e
n
s
io
n
e
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

- 
B
e
s
p
o
k
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
e
x
p
la
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
in
g
 w
h
y
 L
B
B
D
 h
a
s
 a
c
te
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
m
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 T
e
a
m
 

- 
W
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 p
re
s
s
, 
P
R
 a
n
d
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
L
e
a
d
e
r’
s
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
it
h
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

L
e
a
d
e
r 

 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

 

W
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
ia
is
e
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
A
g
e
 U
K
 

a
n
d
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

 
–

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3
 

P
h

a
s

e
 3

 
T

h
e

 T
im

e
 i
s

 N
o

w
  

 

 
 

 
•
 
P
o
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 h
ig
h
-p
ro
fi
le
 P
R
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 

- 
F
o
c
u
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
n
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
n
t 

fi
rs
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
re
m
o
s
t.
 

- 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

- 
M
o
re
 p
ro
m
p
ts
 f
o
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 T
o
u
g
h
 T
im
e
s
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

- 
K
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
: 
th
is
 i
s
 a
 C
o
a
lit
io
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

d
ig
it
a
l 
c
o
m
m
s
, 

F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 a
n
d
 

T
w
it
te
r 

 
•
 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 k
e
y
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
r 
m
e
d
ia
 w
o
rk
 

- 
F
e
a
tu
re
 a
rt
ic
le
s
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
m
e
d
ia
, 
lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
m
e
d
ia
 

a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 a
ff
a
ir
s
 b
lo
g
s
. 

- 
B
y
-l
in
e
d
 f
o
r 
L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r.
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

 

Page 42



D
a
te
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

W
h
o
 

N
o
te
s
 

- 
W
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 d
a
ta
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
n
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 

 
•
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
o
o
k
le
t 
re
-d
e
s
ig
n
 

- 
H
a
rd
 h
it
ti
n
g
, 
k
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 i
n
 L
e
a
d
e
r’
s
 F
o
re
w
o
rd
 a
b
o
u
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f
o
rc
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
y
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

- 
P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
a
d
y
 R
e
c
k
o
n
e
r 

- 
P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 

- 
P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 T
o
u
g
h
 T
im
e
s
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

  

E
le
v
a
te
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 

C
o
m
m
s
 

W
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 n
e
w
 

d
e
s
ig
n
 f
o
r 
C
T
 

b
o
o
k
le
t 
in
 2
0
1
3
 –
 

w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 

m
u
c
h
 m
o
re
 s
lic
k
 

a
n
d
 h
a
rd
-h
it
ti
n
g
. 

 
•
 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 B
&
D
 D
ir
e
c
t 
S
c
ri
p
ts
 

- 
E
le
v
a
te
 a
n
d
 M
&
C
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 P
la
in
 E
n
g
lis
h
 s
c
ri
p
ts
 f
o
r 

c
a
lle
r 
q
u
e
ri
e
s
 (
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 a
ft
e
r 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
ill
s
 

a
re
 s
e
n
t)
 

 
 

 
•
 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 M
P
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 

- 
In
-d
e
p
th
 Q
&
A
s
 f
o
r 
c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 

- 
T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 s
ig
n
-p
o
s
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
: 
C
re
d
it
 U
n
io
n
 a
n
d
 

C
A
B
x
 

- 
A
n
ti
 P
a
y
-D
a
y
-L
o
a
n
 s
h
o
p
 m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

 
W
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 l
ia
is
o
n
 

w
it
h
 C
re
d
it
 U
n
io
n
, 

C
A
B
x
 a
n
d
 C
V
S
 

o
rg
s
 

  S
u

m
m

a
ry

  
  P
le
a
s
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
 /
 s
to
ry
b
o
a
rd
 o
f 
 t
h
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
r 
E
IA
 (
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
  
w
h
a
t 
w
e
 d
o
 w
e
ll,
 o
u
r 
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 ,
 o
u
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
  
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
w
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 d
o
  
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
 

 W
h

a
t 

is
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

?
 

 O
v
e
r 
1
6
,0
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 B
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 c
u
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
a
lit
io
n
 G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
re
d
u
c
e
s
 

Page 43



e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
in
 2
0
1
3
. 

 M
a
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
 c
a
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
la
im
 a
n
d
 g
e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
ir
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
ill
. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 c
la
im
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
m
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 e
n
d
 o
n
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 r
e
fo
rm

. 

 E
a
c
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 p
u
t 
a
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
s
o
m
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
. 

B
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 l
o
s
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
£
2
 m
ill
io
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
f 
w
e
 w
e
re
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
c
u
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 

fr
o
n
t-
lin
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 f
in
d
 a
 w
a
y
 t
o
 s
a
v
e
 t
h
is
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
It
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
fe
w
 y
e
a
rs
, 
if
 m
o
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
ir
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
n
d
 /
o
r 
th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
re
d
u
c
e
s
 e
v
e
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
 

 W
e
 p
re
d
ic
t 
th
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
w
ill
 s
e
e
 i
t 
ta
k
e
n
 a
w
a
y
 o
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 m

e
a
n
 a
n
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
£
1
5
0
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
 y
e
a
r 
le
a
v
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 £
1
0
-1
5
 w
o
rs
e
 o
ff
 a
 m
o
n
th
 b
u
t 
a
c
tu
a
l 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 a
re
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 a
 

c
la
im
a
n
t’
s
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
 

 O
n
ly
 p
e
n
s
io
n
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
s
e
 n
e
w
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
7
,8
0
0
 p
e
n
s
io
n
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
 d
ra
ft
 n
e
w
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 e
a
s
y
. 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 t
im
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 
m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 
 

 O
u

r 
d

ra
ft

 s
c

h
e
m

e
 

 W
e
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
n
e
w
 

lo
c
a
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 f
ro
m
 1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 s
o
m
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 u
p
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

s
u
b
s
id
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
  

 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 w
id
e
ly
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 b
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 h
o
p
e
fu
lly
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 e
a
s
ie
r 
to
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
. 

Page 44



 O
u
r 
d
ra
ft
 s
c
h
e
m
e
: 

 

R
e

v
is

e
 t

h
e

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 n
e
w

 l
o

c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

d
u

c
e

s
 t

h
e

 
m

a
x

im
u

m
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 8
5

%
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 e
li

g
ib

le
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x
 

 T
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
e
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 i
n
 o
u
r 
d
ra
ft
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
re
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
: 

 P
ri
n
c
ip
le
 1
: 
 T
h
e
 c
o
re
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 l
o
c
a
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 w
ill
 r
e
m
a
in
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 

P
ri
n
c
ip
le
 2
: 
 E
v
e
ry
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 a
d
u
lt
 s
h
o
u
ld
 p
a
y
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
 1
5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 c
u
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
p
p
lie
d
 e
q
u
a
lly
  

P
ri
n
c
ip
le
 3
: 
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
n
s
io
n
e
rs
 a
s
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
te
d
 b
y
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
n
c
ip
le
 4
: 
T
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is
e
 w
o
rk
 

P
ri
n
c
ip
le
 5
: 
A
 D
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 F
u
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
re
a
te
d
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 
in
c
o
m
e
s
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
ir
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
. 
U
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 n
e
w
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 

th
a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 p
e

n
s

io
n

e
rs
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 m
o
re
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
ill
. 
T
h
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 

th
a
t 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 f
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
p
a
y
 a
n
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
ir
 b
ill
. 
T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 s
h
a
re
s
 t
h
e
 b
u
rd
e
n
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
w
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
 e
x
tr
a
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
th
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 p
e
rs
o
n
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 b
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 i
s
 i
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
th
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 h
ig
h
e
r 
b
a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
ill
 p
a
y
 m
o
re
. 
 

 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
is
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
e
s
te
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
o
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
e
lp
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 g
e
ts
 d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ily
 s
iz
e
, 
th
e
ir
 

w
e
e
k
ly
 i
n
c
o
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 a
n
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
E
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
lis
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 w
e
e
k
ly
 r
a
te
s
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 w
h
a
t 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 o
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
re
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 o
r 
a
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
llo
w
a
n
c
e
. 

 T
o
 w
o
rk
 o
u
t 
h
o
w
 m
u
c
h
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 g
e
t 
w
e
 c
o
m
p
a
re
 t
h
e
ir
 a
c
tu
a
l 
w
e
e
k
ly
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 

a
m
o
u
n
ts
. 
If
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
s
 (
o
r 
le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
) 
th
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 a
m
o
u
n
t;
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rs
o
n
 w
ill
 g
e
t 
th
e
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 h
e
lp
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
lie
s
 t
o
 

Page 45



th
e
ir
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
If
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 p
lu
s
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 (
a
s
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
e
lin
e
s
) 
is
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 a
m
o
u
n
t,
 w
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
 t
h
e
m
 2
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
tr
a
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
e
lp
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 

th
e
ir
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
If
 2
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t.
  

 U
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 n
e
w
 r
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
’s
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 w
a
y
 b
u
t 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 8
5
%
 o
f 
th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
1
5
%
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 b
e
fo
re
 w
e
 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
 a
n
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

     

Page 46



ASSEMBLY 

14 January 2013 

Title: Calculation and Setting of the Council Tax Base for 2013-14 
 
Report of: Cabinet Member for Finance 

 
Open  
 

For Decision 

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: Yes 
 

Report Author:  Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director - 
Finance  

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8724 8427 
E-mail: 
jonathan.bunt@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director, Finance 
 

Accountable Director:  The Chief Executive 

 

Summary:  

This report seeks approval of the Authority’s Council Tax Base for 2013-14.   This report 
sets out the calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2013-14 and provides information on 
powers available to the Council to set discounts and exemptions for various classes of 
property and to award locally determined discounts. 

Recommendation(s) 

The Assembly is asked to agree: 

1. That in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) (England) 
Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by the London Borough of Barking & 
Dagenham Council as its Tax Base for the year 2013-14 shall be 39,955.66 Band 
‘D’ properties. This is subject to approval of the Council Tax Support Scheme and 
new rules on empty properties set out in the report to Assembly titled ‘Localising 
Support for Council Tax in England – Final Scheme’ to be presented on 14January 
2013.  

2. That discounts and exemptions applied in calculating the tax base are those 
recommended in the report named above and those prescribed by statute.  

3. That no locally determined discounts based on categories of property or occupier 
be awarded for 2013-14.  This is consistent with previous decisions of the Council. 

4. That there should be no award of reductions for prompt payment during 2012-13.  
This is consistent with previous decisions of the Council. 

Reason(s) 
 
The Council has a duty to set a Tax Base for Council Tax purposes by 31 January each 
year under Section 67 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  It will ensure that the 
Policy House aim of ensuring a well run organisation is met. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 47



1. Introduction and Background  

1.1 The Tax Base must be conveyed to the major precepting Authorities by 31 January 
prior to the start of the financial year. 

1.2 The Tax Base must be calculated in accordance with regulations made by the 
Secretary of State under Section 33(5) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
and The Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012. 

1.3 The regulations set a prescribed period for the calculation of the tax, which is 
between the 1 December and 31 January in the financial year preceding that for 
which the calculation of the council tax base is made.  The data used in the 
calculation must be that held by the Council as at 30 November. 

1.4 Appendices A and A1 set out the Calculation of Tax Base. 

 

2. Proposal and Issues  

2.1 The Government brought in legislation (Local Government Finance Act 2012) to 
allow local authorities discretion over the level of exemptions and discounts allowed 
on empty properties.  

2.2 Table 1 below sets out the proposed changes to exemptions and discounts on 
empty homes recommended to the Council in the 14 January Assembly report 
‘Localising Support for Council Tax in England – Final Scheme’.  

2.3 This table illustrates the additional income if 100% of the extra charge could be 
collected but it is estimated that a more realistic level of income from these changes 
would be £500K. The estimates are based on actual exemptions awarded in 
2011/12 and will be different when based on actual empty properties in 2013/14. 

Table 1 

 
Class of property 

 
Current status 

 
Proposed status 

 
Estimated 
additional 
income 

Second Homes 
A discount of 10% for up 

to 1 year 
A discount of 10% for 
up to 1 month only 

18K 

Class A – undergoing 
major repair 

100% exemption for up 
to 1 year 

100% exemption for up 
to 1 month only 82K 

Class C – unoccupied 
and unfurnished 

100% exemption for up 
to 6 months 

100% exemption for up 
to 1 month only 763K 

Long Term Empty 
Properties 

Full Council Tax liability 
is charged 

After 2 years empty a 
premium of 50% 

charged 
27K 

Total   
 

890K 

 

3. Options Appraisal  

3.1 In December 2008 the Assembly accepted a recommendation not to award 
reductions for prompt and non-cash payments for 2009/10 but to reconsider the 
possibility of this in future years. 

Page 48



3.2 Under regulation 25 of the Council Tax Administration and Enforcement 
Regulations, a billing authority may set a resolution on or before the date that the 
Council Tax is set, that will allow a scheme to be run which would allow Council Tax 
payers to receive a discount for paying their Council Tax by a specified date / day, 
in one lump sum. 

3.3 Changes made in the Local Government Finance Act 2012 allowed local changes 
to be made to discounts and exemptions on empty properties. The changes 
proposed are detailed above.  

3.4 By the same Act a new Council Tax Support Scheme is required from 1 April 2013. 
This is detailed in the Assembly report ‘Localising Support for Council Tax in 
England – Final Scheme’. 

3.5 The Council Tax Base detailed in this report includes the changes to empty 
properties and the new Council Tax Support Scheme as detailed above. 

 
4. Consultation  
 
4.1 None 
 
5. Financial Implications  
 
5.1 The financial implications are set out in Appendix A to this report (Calculation of 

Tax Base). 
 
6. Legal Implications  
 
6.1 The legal context and implications are summarised within sections 1 - 3 of this 

report. 
 
7 Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
7.1 Assembly Report - ‘Localising Support for Council Tax in England – Final Scheme’ 

Local Government Finance Act 2012 
 

List of appendices: 

� Appendix A – Council Tax Base 2013-14 
� Appendix A1- Council Tax Base Data 2013-14 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

Calculation of Tax Base 

1. Calculation of Tax Base 

1.1 The valuation of properties for Council Tax purposes is carried out by the Valuation 
Office Agency. 

1.2 For Council Tax purposes each property is placed in a band based on its open 
market value as at 1 April 1991.  The bands are as follows: - 

Range of Values Band Valuation 

Values not exceeding £40,000 A 

Values exceeding £40,000  but not exceeding   £52,000 B 

Values exceeding    £52,000 but not exceeding    £68,000 C 

Values exceeding   £68,000 but not exceeding    £88,000 D 

Values exceeding    £88,000 but not exceeding   £120,000 E 

Values exceeding  £120,000  but not exceeding   £160,000 F 

Values exceeding  £160,000  but not exceeding   £320,000 G 

Values exceeding £320,000 H 

1.3 The Tax Base is calculated in terms of the equivalent number of Band 'D' properties 
after discounts and exemptions have been taken into account.  There are statutory 
ratios which determine the proportion of the band D charge that will be charged for 
a property in each band.  The ratios are as follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.4 The standard Council Tax is set in relation to Band 'D' properties, this will mean that 
somebody living in a Band 'A' property pays 2/3rds of the standard amount whilst 
somebody in a Band 'H' property pays twice the standard amount. 

1.5 The full Council Tax charge is based on the assumption that the property is 
occupied by two or more adults.  However, some properties are exempt from any 
charge, and others qualify for a discount.  In determining the Tax Base the following 
discounts and exemptions are taken into account: - 

a) Single Person Discount 

 Where only one adult lives in the property the Council Tax bill for that property is 
reduced by 25%.  

 b) Status Discounts 

A   =    6/9ths   E   =   11/9ths 

B   =    7/9ths   F   =   13/9ths 

C   =    8/9ths   G  =   15/9ths 

D   =    1                         H  =   18/9ths 

Page 51



APPENDIX A 

For the purpose of determining the number of adults living in the property certain 
categories of people are not taken into account.  Examples include: 

• Full time students and student nurses 

• Recent school leavers 

• People with severe mentally impairment 

• People living in a nursing or care home 

• Certain care workers 

• People in prison 

• Properties left unoccupied because the occupier has died 

Where the number of adults to be counted after allowing these disregards is one, a 
25% discount is allowed.  Where the number of adults is nil a 50% discount is 
allowed. 

c) Empty Properties 

 Properties that are unoccupied and unfurnished and have been so for 2 years or 
more are charged an additional 50% of the applicable council tax. 

 The government has confirmed its intention to abolish class A and C exemptions for 
empty properties to be replaced with locally set discounts. 

 d) Exemptions 

There are 21 categories of property which are exempt.  The main exemption that 
applies in Barking and Dagenham are properties occupied by students. 

e) Reductions for People with Disabilities 

Under certain circumstances, a property that is the home of a person with a 
disability is charged at the rate for the band below that which would normally be 
charged.  For properties in band A the charge is reduced by 1/9th of the band D 
charge. 

 The calculation of the Council Tax Base for information Purposes is required to be 
submitted to the department for Communities and Local Government each year. 
The calculation was submitted on 11 October 2012 and the tax base for Grant 
purposes was 55,332.20 band D equivalent properties.    

 For the purposes of setting the tax base for calculating the Council Tax, the 
information to be used is that recorded in the valuation list and the Council Tax 
records as at 30 November 2012.  The number of band D equivalents for each 
property band at that date is shown below with a comparison to the figures at the 
time the tax base was set for 2012-13. 

 

f) Reductions for second homes 

Second homes are eligible for a 10% discount for 30 days.  After this time the full 
council tax applicable to the property is charged. 

 

 g) Discounts for tax payers that qualify for the Council’s council tax 
reduction scheme 

Page 52



APPENDIX A 

Discounts are awarded to residents who claim and who qualify for a discount under 
the Council’s council tax reduction scheme which is set out in a report to be 
considered by Council at the assembly meeting on 14 January 2013. 

 

2012-13  2013-14 

Last Year 
Totals 

Band ‘D’ 
Equivalents 

Band Total Band ‘D’ 
Equivalent 

     

4.50 2.50  A* 4.50 2.50 

5,636.00 3,757.30 A 5,492.75 3,661.80 

9,023.20 7,018.00 B 9,073.05 7,056.80 

38,259.90 34008.80 C 38,585.85 34,298.50 

7,563.90 7,563.90 D 7,746.35 7,746.40 

1,513.95 1,850.40 E 1,563.10 1,910.50 

310.05 447.90 F 315.20 455.30 

39.70 66.20 G 39.30 65.50 

6.90 13.80 H 4.90 9.80 

62,358.10 54,728.80  62,825.00 55207.10 

Council Tax support scheme   (13,883.96) 

Council Tax new discount 
scheme for empty properties 

  672.65 

Estimated 2013/14 Band D 
equivalent 

  41,995.79 

*Disabled person’s reductions 

 

2. Adjustments 

 

2.1 The table above has additional adjustments for the Council Tax support scheme 
based upon a 15% reduction in liability for working age applicants and the changes 
made to exemptions for empty properties as explained in the tax base report. 

2.2 When determining the tax base for the purpose of setting the Council Tax an 
allowance has been made for non collection.  The losses on collection allowance for 
2013-14 has been assessed as 3%, in the previous year it was set at 3%, In 

Page 53



APPENDIX A 

addition this year a further allowance for loss in collection has been made for the 
Council Tax support scheme. 

2.2 The adjustment, expressed as band D equivalents, is shown below.  

Estimated 2013/14 Band D equivalent 41,995.79 

Losses on collection allowance at 3% (1235.74) 

Loses in collection allowance (Council Tax support 
scheme) 

(804.39) 

Final Tax Base for 2013-14 39,955.66 

 

3.4 A fully detailed calculation of the tax base is contained in Appendix A1 

Page 54



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
1
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
1
 –
 E
x
tr
a
c
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 S
y
s
te
m
 

c
t6
1
4
0
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
s
 a
t 
3
0
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

B
a
n
d
 A
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 

B
a
n
d
 A
 

B
a
n
d
 B
 

B
a
n
d
 C
 

B
a
n
d
 D
 

B
a
n
d
 E
 

B
a
n
d
 F
 

B
a
n
d
 G
 

B
a
n
d
 H
 

T
o
ta
ls
 

L
in
e
 1
 

T
o
ta
l 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 o
n
 v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 l
is
t 

 
7
,1
7
6
 

1
0
,8
5
1
 

4
3
,4
5
5
 

8
,5
1
1
 

1
,7
0
3
 

3
3
1
 

4
4
 

1
8
 

7
2
,0
8
9
 

L
in
e
 2
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
x
e
m
p
t 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 

[C
la
s
s
 A
 t
o
 W

 e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
s
] 

 
6
0
2
 

5
0
4
 

9
2
0
 

1
5
3
 

3
0
 

7
 

3
 

0
 

2
,2
1
9
 

L
in
e
 3
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
e
m
o
li
s
h
e
d
 

d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

 
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
in
e
 4
 

C
h
a
rg
e
a
b
le
 d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 t
re
a
ti
n
g
 

d
e
m
o
li
s
h
e
d
 d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 e
tc
 a
s
 

e
x
e
m
p
t 
[ 
L
in
e
s
 1
 -
 2
 -
 3
 ]
 

 
6
,5
7
4
 

1
0
,3
4
7
 

4
2
,5
3
5
 

8
,3
5
8
 

1
,6
7
3
 

3
2
4
 

4
1
 

1
8
 

6
9
,8
7
0
 

L
in
e
 5
 

C
h
a
rg
e
a
b
le
 d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 4
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

 
5
 

1
7
 

1
6
5
 

7
0
 

1
9
 

3
 

6
 

1
2
  

2
9
7
 

L
in
e
 6
 

D
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

T
a
x
 b
y
 v
ir
tu
e
 o
f 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

re
li
e
f 

5
 

1
7
 

1
6
5
 

7
0
 

1
9
 

3
 

6
 

1
2
 

 
2
9
7
 

L
in
e
 7
 

C
h
a
rg
e
a
b
le
 d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
in
e
s
 5
 a
n
d
 

6
 [
 l
in
e
s
 4
 -
 5
 +
 6
 ]
 

5
 

6
,5
8
6
 

1
0
,4
9
5
 

4
2
,4
4
0
 

8
,3
0
7
 

1
,6
5
7
 

3
2
7
 

4
7
 

6
 

6
9
,8
7
0
 

L
in
e
 8
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
 

2
5
%
 [
S
P
D
 ]
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

2
 

4
,2
2
2
 

5
,4
2
7
 

1
4
,5
3
1
 

2
,0
8
6
 

3
4
2
 

3
1
 

2
 

0
 

2
6
,6
4
3
 

L
in
e
 9
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
 2
5
%
 

d
is
c
o
u
n
t 
w
it
h
 1
 o
r 
m
o
re
 

d
is
re
g
a
rd
 

0
 

7
1
 

1
5
2
 

6
0
4
 

9
5
 

1
6
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

9
4
1
 

L
in
e
 1
0
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 2
 x
 2
5
%
 

d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

0
 

4
 

3
 

1
6
 

7
 

1
 

5
 

1
4
 

2
 

5
2
 

L
in
e
 1
1
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 c
la
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
o
m
e
s
 [
C
la
s
s
e
s
 A
 &
 B
] 

&
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 E
m
p
ty
 [
 

R
S
G
 =
 5
0
%
 e
v
e
n
 i
f 
d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

g
ra
n
te
d
 =
<
 5
0
%
] 

 
1
6
 

3
5
 

1
0
4
 

1
9
 

6
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
8
1
 

L
in
e
 1
2
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 c
la
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

 e
m
p
ty
 [
 C
la
s
s
 C
 ]
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 5
0
%
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

Page 55



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
1
 

L
in
e
 1
3
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
 

5
0
%
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t 
fo
r 
R
S
G
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 [
 l
in
e
s
 1
0
+
1
1
+
1
2
 ]
 

0
 

2
0
 

3
8
 

1
2
0
 

2
6
 

7
 

6
 

1
4
 

2
 

2
3
3
 

L
in
e
 1
4
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 c
la
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

 e
m
p
ty
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
 0
%
 

d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

 
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
in
e
 1
5
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 

in
 l
in
e
 7
 c
la
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

 e
m
p
ty
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
 >
 0
%
 

a
n
d
 <
 5
0
%
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

 
1
0
0
 

8
2
 

1
0
4
 

2
4
 

9
 

3
 

2
 

1
 

3
2
5
 

L
in
e
 1
6
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 7
 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 l
ia
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 

p
a
y
 1
0
0
%
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 [
 l
in
e
s
 7
 -
 

8
 -
 9
 -
 1
3
 -
 1
5
 ]
 

3
 

2
,1
7
3
 

4
,7
9
6
 

2
7
,0
8
1
 

6
,0
7
6
 

1
,2
8
3
 

2
8
4
 

2
9
 

3
 

4
1
,7
2
8
 

L
in
e
 1
7
 

T
o
ta
l 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
 a
ft
e
r 

d
is
c
o
u
n
ts
, 
e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
. 
[ 
L
in
e
s
 8
 x
 0
.7
5
 +
 

li
n
e
 9
 x
 0
.7
5
 

+
 l
in
e
 1
3
 x
 0
.5
 +
 l
in
e
 1
5
 x
 [
1
0
0
 -
 

%
d
is
c
o
u
n
t/
1
0
0
 +
 l
in
e
 1
6
 [
 2
 

d
e
c
im

a
l 
p
la
c
e
s
 ]
 

4
.5
0
 

5
,4
9
2
.7
5
 

9
,0
7
3
.0
5
 

3
8
,5
8
5
.8
5
 

7
,7
4
6
..
3
5
 

1
,5
6
3
.1
0
 

3
1
5
.2
0
 

3
9
.3
0
 

4
.9
0
 

6
2
,8
2
5
 

 
R
a
ti
o
 t
o
 B
a
n
d
 D
 

5
/9
 

6
/9
 

7
/9
 

8
/9
 

9
/9
 

1
1
/9
 

1
3
/9
 

1
5
/9
 

1
8
/9
 

 

2
.5
 

3
,6
6
1
.8
 

7
,0
5
6
.8
 

3
4
,2
9
8
.5
 

7
,7
4
6
.4
 

1
,9
1
0
.5
 

4
5
5
.3
 

6
5
.5
 

9
.8
 

5
5
,2
0
7
.1
 

 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
3
,8
8
4
.0
 

 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 n
e
w
 e
m
p
ty
 

d
is
c
o
u
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6
7
2
.7
0
 

 
R
e
v
is
e
d
 T
a
x
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
fo
rm

u
la
 

g
ra
n
t 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 (
to
 1
 d
e
c
im

a
l 

p
la
c
e
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4
1
,9
9
5
.8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 56



ASSEMBLY 
 

14 January 2013 
 

Title: Business Rates Income Forecast for 2013/14 

 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance 

 
Open Report For Decision 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author:  
Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director of Finance 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8874 8427 
E-mail: jonathan.bunt@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director of Finance 
 

Accountable Director:  The Chief Executive 
 

Summary:  
 
This report provides an estimate of the business rates income the Council is expecting to 
collect in 2013/14. 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly is recommended to agree the Council’s business rates income forecast for 
2013/14 contained at Appendix A. 
 

Reason(s) 
 
The Department for Communities and Local Government requires that the business rates 
income forecast is formally approved by the Council. 

 
1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced changes to the way Local 

Government was funded.  One of the changes included the localisation of business 
rates from 2013/14. Previously all rates collected were paid directly to the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG) and redistributed 
centrally. 
 

1.2 These changes allow Local Authorities to retain a proportion of the rates they 
collect.  The CLG has allocated each authority with an amount of rates they are 
expected to retain in 2013/14 if no changes occur.  This amount is called the 
business rate baseline and is calculated using the average rates collected over the 
last two years. 

 
1.3 Any difference between the Local Authority’s business rate baseline and the amount 

of rates retained will create either a pressure or additional resources for that 
authority depending on whether it collects more or less than the baseline.  

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 57



Estimates of the amount of business rates income an authority is forecasting to 
collect is required to be submitted to CLG by 31 January each year. 

 
1.4 Following the localisation of business rates CLG have instructed Councils that their 

business rates income forecasts should be sent to them by completion of a return 
called the National Non Domestic Rates 1 (NNDR1) return and be formally 
approved by the Council.  The Council’s NNDR 1 return is at Appendix A. 

 
2. Proposal and Issues  
 
2.1 The NNDR 1 return is based on the Council’s current position and takes into 

account the future opportunities and risks associated with business rates income.  It 
has been completed in accordance with the guidance issued by CLG and is a 
prudent estimate of the business rates income for 2013/14.   

 
2.2 Assembly is recommended to agree the NNDR 1 return showing the Council’s 

business rates income forecast for 2013/14 contained at Appendix A. 
 
3. Options Appraisal  
 
3.1 An options appraisal is not relevant as CLG prescribes the format and method of 

calculation of the NNDR 1 return. 
 
4. Consultation  

 
4.1 The calculation of the business rates income estimate follows a prescribed process 

and, as such, does not require consultation.  Financial implications are discussed at 
paragraph 5 and legal implications are at paragraph 6. 
 

5. Financial Implications  
 

Implications completed by: Chris Leslie, Group Accountant, Budgets 
 
5.1 The NNDR 1 return at Appendix A shows the Council is forecasting to collect 

£59,844k.  London Boroughs retain a 30% share of the rates they collect, which 
means the Council will retain £17,953k on current expectations. 
 

5.2 The Council’s business rate baseline is £16,715k.  This means additional collection 
of £1,238k (£17,953k - £16,715k).  Any amount retained in excess of the baseline is 
subject to a levy of 66.9%, and once paid will provide the Council with additional 
resources of £410k. 
 

5.3 Should the actual business rates collected in 2013/14 differ from the estimate then 
the difference will be carried over into 2014/15.  This will create either an additional 
pressure or an additional resource in 2014/15 depending on if the actual collected is 
higher or lower than the estimate. 

 
6. Legal Implications  
 

Implications completed by: Paul Feild Corporate Governance Lawyer 
Telephone 020 8227 3133 e-mail paul.feild@lbbd.gov.uk  

 

Page 58



6.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 continues the Coalition Government's 
policy of localism in that it introduces a rates retention scheme. The intention is that 
because a proportion may be retained it will provide an incentive for encouraging 
economic growth 

 
6.2 The scheme allows the local authority to keep a percentage of the business rates 

collected. As a result there is an incentive for efficient collection as any surplus over 
the business rates baseline can also be retained. However the converse also 
applies as if the actual collection is less than the baseline this is a cost on the 
general fund. Balancing provisions apply so late payments will be taken into 
account going forward. The scheme’s baseline figure is subject to annual review by 
CLG so if the economy were to slump or the CLG baseline carried optimistic 
collection assumptions a deficit could emerge. The important point to note is that 
while there will be the ability to retain a percentage, the Government will retain the 
control to determine rateable value; baseline setting and percentage.   

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

Department for Communities and Local Government’s Business Rates Retention 
Draft Regulations - October 2012 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/9358/
2243458.pdf 

 
List of appendices: 
 
Appendix A – National Non Domestic Rates 1 (NNDR1) Return 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A
9

 Select your local authority's name from this list:   

Check that this is your authority :   Barking and Dagenham

Check that this is your E Code :   E5030

Local authority contact name :   Stuart Kirby

Telephone number of local authority contact :   

Fax number for local authority contact :   

E-mail address of local authority contact :   Ver 1.1

1. Number of hereditaments on the rating list on 30 September 2012 4,140

£

2. Aggregate rateable value on the rating list on 30 September 2012 146,257,097

GROSS CALCULATED RATE YIELD £

3. Enter line 2 x small business non-domestic rating multiplier (0.462) 67,570,778.81

MANDATORY RELIEFS

Small business rate relief £

4. Additional yield generated to finance the small business rate relief scheme 1,113,564.47

5. Cost of small business rate relief for properties within billing authority area 2,071,814.12

6. Net cost of the small business rate relief (Line 5 minus Line 4) 958,249.65

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES RETURN 1

 NNDR1 2013-14

Please e-mail to : nndr.statistics@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Please enter your details after checking that you have selected the correct authority name.

Please check the figures shown in the cells with a blue border and enter your own figures if you disagree with those suggested.

A provisional version of the form should be returned to the Department for Communities and Local Government by

Monday 7 January 2013

The final version of this form, including a signed copy, must also be sent to the Department for Communities and Local Government by

Thursday 31 January 2013

Ashfield

Ashford

Aylesbury Vale

Babergh
Barking and Dagenham

Barnet

6. Net cost of the small business rate relief (Line 5 minus Line 4) 958,249.65

7. Cost of relief to charities 2,042,531.98

8. Cost of relief to Community Amateur Sports Clubs 29,293.56

0.00

10. Cost of relief for partly occupied premises 0.00

11. Cost of relief for empty premises 3,103,812.70

12. Total mandatory reliefs (Sum of lines 6 to 11) 6,133,887.89

DISCRETIONARY RELIEFS

13. Cost of relief to charities 263,987.00

14. Cost of relief to non-profit making bodies 35,420.04

15. Cost of relief to Community Amateur Sports Clubs 7,323.39

0.00

17. Cost of relief to other rural businesses 0.00

18. Other Section 47 reliefs (Localism Act discounts) 0.00

19. Total discretionary reliefs (Sum of lines 13 to 18) 306,730.43

20. Gross Rate Yield after reliefs (Line 3 minus lines 12 & 19) 61,130,160.49

21. Estimate of 'losses in collection' 1,080,000.00

22. Allowance for Cost of Collection 205,771.99

23. Special Authority Deductions - City of London Offset 0.00

9. Cost of relief for rural general stores, post offices, public houses, petrol filling 

stations and food shops

16. Cost of relief for rural general stores, post offices, public houses, petrol filling 

stations and food shops

Ashfield

Ashford

Aylesbury Vale

Babergh
Barking and Dagenham

Barnet

Page 61



Appendix A

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES RETURN 1 2013-14 Barking and Dagenham
Ver 1.1

Section 2

Enterprise Zones £

24. Estimated level of discount to be awarded in 2013-14 0.00

25. Estimated value of non-domestic rates in the Enterprise Zone area in 2013-14 0.00

26. Enterprise Zone baseline 0.00

27. Total estimated value of business rates to be retained in 2013-14 (Line 25 minus line 26) 0.00

New Development Deals

28. Estimated value of non-domestic rates in the New Development Deals area in 2013-14 0.00

29. New Development Deals baseline 0.00

30. Total estimated value of business rates to be retained in 2013-14 (Line 28 minus line 29) 0.00

Renewable Energy Schemes

31. Total estimated value of business rates to be retained in 2013-14 0.00

59,844,388.50

Rate retention adjustments

33. Estimate of the change in rateable value between 1 October 2012 and 30 September 2013 0.00

34. Estimate of the change in receipts as a result in the change in rateable value (line 33 times the multiplier) 0.00

%

This equates to a percentage change of 0.00

35. Local authority's estimate of adjustment due to appeals

59,844,389.00

Section 3

Transitional arrangements

37. Addition revenue received because reduction in rates have been deferred 1,600,669.47

32. Net Rate Yield excluding transitional arrangements and rate retention (Line 20 minus the sum of 

lines 21 to 23, 27, 30 & 31)

36. Net Rate Yield excluding transitional arrangements but after rate retention adjustments (Line 32 

plus lines 34 and minus line 35)

38. Revenue foregone because increase in rates have been deferred 72,165.97

39. Net cost of transitional arrangements (Line 38 minus line 37) -1,528,503.50

40. Net Rate Yield after transitional arrangements and rate retention (Line 36 minus line 39) 61,372,893.00

NNDR Summary for : Barking and Dagenham

£

Amount of NNDR to be paid to central government 29,922,195.00

Amount to be retained by Barking and Dagenham under the rates retention scheme 17,953,317.00

Amount to be passed to Greater London Authority 11,968,878.00

 

These figures show the percentage shares of the NNDR you estimate your authority will collect in 2013-14. They are based on line 36. See the Tier Split  tab for full 

information

Page 62


	Agenda
	3 Localising Support for Council Tax In England - Final Scheme
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	4 Calculation and Setting of the Council Tax Base for 2013/14
	Appendix A - Council Tax Base 2013-14
	Appendix A1 - Council Tax Base Data 2013-14

	5 Business Rates Income Forecast 2013/14
	Appendix A


